Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 10 October 2019

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
2 October 2019

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

4.

First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/20 (Pages 7 54)

5.

Corporate Plan 2019 - 23 (Pages 55 - 84)

6.

Data Protection Policy (Pages 85 - 112)

PART 2
7.

To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

8.

To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 113 - 118)
(Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 5 - Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information)
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

9.

First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/20 - Appendix
D (Pages 119 - 122)
(Paragraph 7 - Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )

10.

Glossop Town Hall Complex Update (Pages 123 - 140)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

11.

Surrender and Re-grant of the Buxton and High Peak Golf Club Lease (Pages 141 154)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

12.

Granby Road Site A - Disposal Report (Pages 155 - 188)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

13.

Lease of land at Serpentine Depot, Burlington Road, Buxton (Pages 189 - 212)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of The Executive
Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillor A Barrow
Councillor J Todd

Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair)
Councillor F Sloman

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
THE EXECUTIVE
Meeting:

Thursday, 15 August 2019 at 6.00 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillors A Barrow, D Greenhalgh, F Sloman and J Todd
Councillors T Ashton and J Collins were also in attendance.

20/5

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)
Councillor Sloman declared an other interest in Item 7 - Homes England
Housing Infrastructure Fund - Acceptance of Grant Award (beneficial
interest in land in the vicinity).

20/6

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the Executive held on 20 June 2019 be approved as
a correct record.

20/7

FOURTH
QUARTER
(PROVISIONAL
OUTTURN)
PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2018/19
(Agenda Item 4)

FINANCIAL,

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth
Quarter 2018/19”). The report was considered by the Corporate Select
Committee on 22 July 2019. The position was summarised as follows:
Subject
Finance

Headline
The headlines for the fourth quarter were:
Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional
outturn for 2018/19 was an underspend of £1,381,989.
Efficiency Programme
 The overall general fund efficiency target was of £581,000
for 2018/19. A small shortfall of £56,743 had been carried
forward to be achieved in 2019/20. The HRA 2018/19
efficiency target of £245,000 had been achieved through
the reduction in minimum revenue provision when setting
the MTFP.
Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account was in surplus (against
budget) by £1,409,779
Page 3
Capital Programme

The Executive
Thursday, 15 August 2019

Subject

Headline


The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2018/19
as revised in February 2019 was £4.62 million. The outturn
was £3.99 million which represented an underspend of
£0.63 million, half of which related to revised vehicle
procurement scheduling.
 The HRA Capital Programme for 2018/19 as revised in
February 2019 was £4.07 million. The outturn was £3.38
million which represented a £0.69 million underspend.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st March 2019 totalled £14.4
million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2019 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget was
marginally underspent by £57,298 with a £34,660 surplus
on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 98.43% of council tax was collected by 31st March 2019,
compared to 98.35% for the same period last year.
 99.09% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March
2019 compared with 98.74% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter 4 the value of sundry debt over 60
days old was £184,465 which compared to £182,066 at
31st March 2018
Procurement

The headlines for the fourth quarter were:
 22 procurement activities were completed
 At the 31st March 2019, 64% of procurement activity
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid
95% of its invoices within 30 days

Performance

The headlines for the fourth quarter were:
 61% of the key performance indicators met target, with 45%
better than target
 Of the 22 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, seven
were completed, one was awaiting a decision, and the
remainder were classified as ‘Green’; and
 The Council received 223 complaints, 294 comments and
167 compliments in the Fourth Quarter. Repeat complaints
and response times were both on track

Options considered:
Detailed analysis was contained within the appendices.
RESOLVED:

1. That the Fourth Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and
performance position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and
summarised at 3.3 of the covering report be noted.

Page 4

The Executive
Thursday, 15 August 2019

2. That the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue Account
to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10) of the report be
approved.
3. That the carry forward unspent revenue budget as described in Appendix
A (Paragraph 2.13) of the report be approved.
4. That the carry forward unspent capital budget as set out in Appendix A
(Paragraph 7.6 and 8.4) of the report be approved.
20/8

WHALEY BRIDGE EMERGENCY
The Executive expressed their thanks to staff involved in the Whaley Bridge
emergency and other incidents in the Borough, whether directly or indirectly,
and to those who ensured that Council services were maintained during this
time.

20/9

CITIZENS ADVICE - COUNCIL TAX PROTOCOL
(Agenda Item 5)
The purpose of the report was to consider a recommendation by the Council
Tax Collection Working Group for the Council to adopt the Citizens Advice
Council Tax Protocol. The report was considered by the Corporate Select
Committee on 22 July 2019.
Options considered:
It was recommended that Council adopted the protocol – the implications of
this was limited and it would be a positive statement about the Council’s
commitment to treating people fairly throughout the council tax recovery
process.
RESOLVED:

1. That the Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol as attached at Appendix
A) to the report be adopted.
2. That the issues that will need to be addressed as detailed in section 9.3
of the report be noted.
3. That the additional work that is to be undertaken by the Working Group
as set out in section 10 of the report be noted.
20/10

TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 6)
RESOLVED:
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items
because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Part I
Page 5 Act 1972.
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government

The Executive
Thursday, 15 August 2019

20/11

HOMES ENGLAND HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND - ACCEPTANCE
OF GRANT AWARD
(Agenda Item 7)
The Executive approved a report that updated Members on a Homes
England funding award and the terms of the Grant Funding Agreement.

20/12

REVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY OPTIONS FOR HOUSING REPAIRS
(Agenda Item 8)
The Executive approved a report that considered the service delivery
options for the Council’s Housing Repairs Service.

20/13

SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF KITCHENS - HRA
PROGRAMME 2019/20 & 2020/21 - CONTRACT AWARD
(Agenda Item 9)

CAPITAL

The Executive approved a report that informed members with details of the
tender returns for the supply and installation of kitchens at various
properties owned by the Council for the 2019/20 and 2020/21 programmes.
20/14

SUPPORTING THE COUNCIL'S LEGAL DUTIES
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING REGULATIONS 2010
(Agenda Item 10)

UNDER

THE

The Executive approved a report which outlined the Council’s approach to
meeting its duties under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010.
This included the conversion of an existing Pollution Specialist post from
part time to a full time post.
20/15

PLANNING AND REGENERATION STAFFING STRUCTURE
(Agenda Item 11)
The Executive approved proposals for revised staffing structures for the
Council’s Planning and Regeneration teams.
The meeting concluded at 6.31 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
10 October 2019
TITLE:

First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance
Review 2019/20

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene - Finance
Vanessa Higgins - Performance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A – 2019/20 – First Quarter (Provisional Outturn) Financial Report
 Appendix B – 2019/20 – First Quarter Procurement Report
 Appendix C – 2019/20 – First Quarter Performance Report
 Appendix D – 2019/20 – First Quarter Write Offs (Confidential)
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform the Executive of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First
Quarter 2019/20”)

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Executive:



Note the First Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report; and
Approve the proposed writes offs as attached in Appendix D

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after
considering service activity up to the end of the first quarter (i.e. 30th June
2019).

Page 7

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:
Headline

Reference

Finance

The headlines for the First Quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter One stage the General Fund provisional outturn for
2019/20 is a forecast small overspend of £58,810.
Efficiency Programme
 The 2019/20 general fund efficiency target of £714,000 has already
been exceeded with £800,000 of savings achieved to date.
Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account is forecast at the Quarter 1 stage to
be in surplus (against budget) by £16,144
Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2019/20 as revised
is £7.90 million. The outturn is anticipated to be on target at the Q1
stage.
 The HRA Capital Programme for 2019/20 as revised is £4.41 million.
At the Quarter 1 stage the outturn is expected to be £4.01 million
which represents a £0.4 million underspend.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30th June 2019 totalled £13.5 million.
 Council borrowing at 30th June 2019 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is forecast to be
overspent by £60,980 with a £25,050 surplus on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 29.64% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2019, compared
to 29.47% for the same period last year.
 30.01% of Business Rates was collected by 30th June 2019
compared with 31.12% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter 1 the value of sundry debt over 60 days old was
£178,520 which compares to £461,117 at 30th June 2018

Appendix A

Procurement

The headlines for the First Quarter are:
 30 procurement activities were completed
 At the 30th June 2019, 50% of procurement activity undertaken was
on the forward plan and the Council paid 95% of its invoices within 30
days
The headlines for the First Quarter are:
 Target was met for 60% of the key performance indicators
 Of the 15 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, one is awaiting a
decision, and the remainder being classified as ‘Green’
 The Council received 47 complaints, 51 comments and 24
compliments in the First Quarter. Repeat complaints and response
times both on track

Appendix B

Subject

Performance

Page 8

Appendix C

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the
subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed analysis is contained within the appendices

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Page 9

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Buxton Town Hall

Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 10

APPENDIX A

2019/20
First Quarter
Financial
Review

1

Page 11

1.

Background and Introduction

1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the
first such report for 2019/20.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2019/20 with particular
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific
considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance by looking at variations in income and expenditure and the
funding received by the Council.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of
the Council’s joint venture company providing waste management and fleet
services.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.



Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.



General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update on
progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.



HRA Capital Programme (Section 7 ) – provides an update on progress
against the Council’s HRA capital plans.



Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of
investments and borrowings.



Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the
council tax, business rates and sundry debts.

2

Page 12

2.

General Fund Revenue Account

2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and funding received by the Council.
Expected
Outturn
2019/20

2019/20
Budget

Service (with staff)

Variance

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance Income & Procurement
Corporate Finance*
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services
Horticulture
Environmental Health

£
65,400
10,240
581,980
72,480
195,000
43,650
(198,470)
(418,410)
38,270
141,890
30,510
81,470
(342,920)
112,560
283,030
67,920
21,250
133,580
(26,130)
6,036,260
1,936,610
116,830
480,670
(774,720)
(5,270)

£
51,400
8,240
541,980
60,480
192,000
209,160
(210,970)
(453,750)
38,270
133,890
30,510
61,470
(342,920)
152,830
277,030
59,920
25,750
131,080
(44,130)
5,872,560
1,967,790
146,520
492,950
(782,080)
(5,270)

£
(14,000)
(2,000)
(40,000)
(12,000)
(3,000)
165,510
(12,500)
(35,340)
(8,000)
(20,000)
40,270
(6,000)
(8,000)
4,500
(2,500)
(18,000)
(163,700)
31,180
29,690
12,280
(7,360)
-

Net Total of Services

8,683,680

8,614,710

(68,970)

1,569,370
10,253,050

1,630,350
10,245,060

60,980
(7,990)

(10,248,040)

(10,128,970)

119,070

(5,010)

(57,280)

(52,270)

-

58,810

58,810

Net Interest

Funding - external
Funding - reserves contribution
to/(from)
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service within Housing
Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service).
** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

2.2.

A revenue budget of £10,253,060 was set for 2019/20. The table above shows
how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.3.

The Q1 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2019/20 is
3

Page 13

£10,311,860. This represents a projected deficit for the year of £58,810.
2.4.

There is one service areas with a projected significant overspend (>£50,000):


2.5.

Property (£165,510 overspend); the running costs of the Council’s buildings
are expected to be some £165,000 above budget. Exceptional costs of
£70,000 relate to remedial works undertaken at the leisure sites and Pavilion
Gardens as part of the commencement of the new contracts with Parkwood
Leisure. A combination of the Authority’s liability for the business rates on
vacant industrial properties, loss of income on Glossop Arcade units and
industrial units is resulting in a forecast £30,000 overspend. On top of this a
£40,000 overspend on general property maintenance is expected as a result
of the interim Facilities Management arrangements currently in place.

There is one service with a projected significant underspend (<£50,000).


Corporate Finance (£163,700 underspend); savings arising out of the
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme ahead of expectation have given
rise to an in-year underspend. This is discussed more fully in section 4
(below).

2.6.

The £60,980 overspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8.

2.7.

The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £66,800 below
that budgeted due to the following:
External Funding (£119,070):
Business Rates Retention (£119,070 shortfall)
 The Business Rates income forecast has reduced since the budget was set
due to increased Small Business Rate Relief being awarded; this has the
effect of reducing the ‘levy’ payable on the business rates growth compared to
what was anticipated. In addition, after the 100% pilot ended, the 2019/20
budget included a conservative estimate of levy payment savings anticipated
from the Council’s membership of the Derbyshire business rates pool based
on the previous pool arrangements. The combination of these elements
indicates additional retention of £288,430.
 This is forecast to be offset by a £407,500 shortfall of s31 grants due to the
authority, particularly for retail discount as this relief was overestimated in the
budget. The shortfall on the general fund from the reduced grant will be offset
over time by a larger surplus on the collection fund from the reduced relief
awarded, which will be distributed in future years.
Use of Reserves £52,270:
At this time a £52,270 additional net movement out of earmarked reserves is
predicted, the most significant element of which is;


Property Services £52,000 use: this represents the use of funds set aside to
support remedial works on a number of the Borough’s leisure sites

4

Page 14

3.

Alliance Environmental Services

3.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision to
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders:
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. This section of the
report considers the financial performance of the company and contribution to the
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

3.2.

Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver
High Peak Borough Council’s waste services. This followed the end of the
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services. Phase 2 began on 1st July
2018 to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and
fleet management services to the Alliance as a whole.
Alliance Environmental Service’s financial performance

3.3.

The AES business plan for all services delivered to both Councils included an
anticipated operating profit of £127,185 in 2019/20. The draft outturn provided at
the end of the first quarter shows that a profit of £107,059 is anticipated by the
end of the year; resulting in a shortfall of £20,126 against the budget. The outturn
includes the forecast risk items payable by the Councils (£359,256); and the
reimbursement of the planned efficiency target payable by (AES £178,750).
2019-2020

Budget

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Variance

£
(7,641,915)
6,847,618
(794,297)

£
(8,023,166)
7,189,232
(833,934)

£
(381,251)
341,614
(39,637)

667,112

726,875

59,763

(127,185)

(107,059)

20,126

Administrative & Other Expenses
(Profit)/ Loss

Draft outturn

Impact on the Council’s budgets
3.4.

This table shows in more detail the forecast outturn on the AES contract included
in the General Fund Revenue Account and HRA:

5

Page 15

General
Fund
£

2019-20

HRA
£

Total
£

AES Contract budget
Former vehicle contract hire budget
Available budget

2,746,520
22,130
2,768,650

103,390
103,390

2,849,910
22,130
2,872,040

Management fee (incl. vehicle premium)
Forecast in-year risk items
HSE notice of change
Allocation of AES efficiency

2,879,373
69,398
22,337
(81,624)

109,804
28,163
0
(3,113)

2,989,177
97,561
22,337
(84,737)

Total management fee payable

2,889,484

134,854

3,024,338

Allocation of Joint Operation Profit
Net total
Variance to budget

(48,887)

(1,864)

(50,751)

2,840,597

132,990

2,973,587

71,947

29,600

101,547

3.5.

The AES Business Plan also includes forecast expenditure recognised initially as
‘risk items’ which may or may not crystallise into actual costs/ payments or may
be absorbed into the existing management fee paid on account. The current
forecast anticipates that £97,561 (£69,398 general fund, £28,163 HRA) of these
risk items will crystallise, the majority of which relate to fleet costs including
grounds maintenance equipment which falls under the ‘fleet’ group.

3.6.

A Health & Safety Executive (HSE) enforcement notice has required a change in
the operational way in which AES collect bulky items. This was not anticipated at
the time of budget setting, therefore has resulted in additional costs. These are
forecast for the year at £22,337, made up of £10,173 for vehicle hire costs and
£12,164 for agency costs.

3.7.

The Council’s share of the total AES efficiency to be achieved is £84,737
(£81,624 general fund, £3,113 HRA). This is repayable to the Council and is
allocated against the management fee costs.

3.8.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
original budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the
forecast profit at the end of quarter 1 is £50,751 (£48,887 general fund, £1,864
HRA) and is offset against the management fee costs.
Efficiencies

3.9.

The total 2019/20 efficiency target relating to AES services is £420,640. This is
made up of the £178,750 allocated to AES for both Councils and £241,890 to be
achieved from the retained budgets of both Councils. This will be monitored
during the year taking into account the timing of phase 3 (the transfer of street
cleansing and grounds maintenance services) that is now likely.
6

Page 16

4.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2019/20.

4.2.

The Council approved a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) in February 2017
Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy targeting savings of £2.1 million. This was
required to balance the forecast budget deficit position of £1.7m and also the carry
forward of unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

4.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both reducing
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy has
been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to
ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out
in the Corporate Plan.

4.4.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has five areas of focus:





Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a
number of large service functions which were previously provided by an
external contractor / supplier.
Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to
allow for the necessary capital investment
Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth
based upon the established Local Plan.
Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on
income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-statutory
services

4.5.

The 2019/20 budget provided for the achievement of £657,000 of new savings in
year). In addition to this a further £132,000 of savings were brought forward as a
result of anticipated shortfalls in 2018/19 (assumed as at the point the budget was
being proposed). However, £75,000 of these savings were actually achieved by
the end of 2018/19, making the savings requirement for 2019/20 a total of
£714,000. The major focus of the savings programme in 2019/20 being on growth,
income generation and procurements.

4.6.

At the end of Quarter One, £800,000 has been taken against the overall efficiency
programme, which includes significant savings arising out of the retendering of the
Council’s contract for insurance services and the procurement of a new leisure
management contract. The saving from this particular procurement has been
realised 12 months earlier than anticipated in the original Efficiency Programme
(where it was expected to be realised in 2020/21). A further £144,000 of growth
related savings were also delivered at budget-setting time, arising out of New
Homes Bonus and Business Rates funding forecasts.
7

Page 17

4.7.

Although this gives a healthy look to the 2019/20 savings position and offsets the
shortfall from 2018/19, it leaves a potential issue for 2020/21 where a further
£495,000 of savings are required. It is therefore important that the remainder of
this year is used to focus on some of the income-related savings, included in the
early years of the Efficiency Programme, which have not been fully realised.

4.8.

The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000.
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency
Programme.

8

Page 18

5.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the
operation of the Council’s housing stock.

5.2.

The 2019/20 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a
surplus of £261,660. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial
Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of £150,000 in unused budgets from
2018/19 to facilitate delayed capital works to complete a major disabled
adaptation (£50,000) and to replace the boiler at ALMA Square (£100,000).
Additionally in August 2019, the Executive approved an increase to the rolling
three year HRA kitchen programme resulting in a further £171,170 HRA
contribution to Capital. This brought the 2019/20 budget to a deficit of £59,510.

5.3.

Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the first
quarter stage is £15,057,024 with estimated income of £15,013,658. This
represents a deficit for the year of £43,366 (i.e. £16,144 below budget).

Housing Revenue Account

INCOME
Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rents, rates, taxes Etc
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment
Interest & Debt Management
Contribution to Capital
Surplus(-)/Deficit

2019-20
Approved
Budget
£

Q1
Changes
£

2019-20
Revised
Budget
£

2019-20
Expected
Outturn
£

Variance
£

(14,325,340)
(622,090)
(14,947,430)

-

(14,325,340)
(622,090)
(14,947,430)

(14,318,924)
(694,734)
(15,013,658)

6,416
(72,644)
(66,228)

3,860,920
3,166,590
105,260
736,450
2,099,030
2,783,310
1,934,210
14,685,770

321,170
321,170

3,860,920
3,166,590
105,260
736,450
2,099,030
2,783,310
2,255,380
15,006,940

4,414,920
3,078,780
115,260
736,390
2,099,030
2,758,264
1,854,380
15,057,024

554,000
(87,810)
10,000
(60)
(25,046)
(401,000)
50,084

(261,660)

321,170

59,510

43,366

(16,144)

5.4.

The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account”
(HRA). By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget
throughout the financial year. The deficit balance predicted by the Council at this
first quarter stage will be funded by a transfer from reserves within the Housing
Revenue Account.

5.5.

There is just one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:
9

Page 19



5.6.

Repairs and Maintenance (£554,000) – There are a number of variances
contributing to this overspend; the most significant are as follows:
- A further £338,000 spend is required to continue the scheme that
commenced in 2018/19 to replace loft insulation within a number of council
dwellings. This was not included in the operational budget and will be
funded from HRA Reserves (i.e. utilising part of the underspend achieved
in 2018/19) if other savings within the HRA cannot offset this.
- Spend within the operational property services budget is expected to be
higher than anticipated in a number of areas. The most significant areas
include additional spend on tools and materials (£70,000); increased use
of sub-contractors and agency staff (£117,000) and lastly increased costs
of disrepair claims (£30,000). Overall the operational services budget is
expected to be £228,000 overspent.

There are three significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.


Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£72,644) – improvements to void turnarounds
and increased income from service charges have been responsible for this
positive variance.



Supervision and Management (£87,810) – there are numerous small
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this
underspend however, a large proportion of this variance relates to savings
made following the recent insurance tender.



Contribution to Capital (£401,000) – This underspend relates to delays in
commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is
reflective of the changes to the Capital programme detailed in Section 7
below.

.

10

Page 20

6.

General Fund Capital Programme

6.1.

This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s General Fund
Programme.

6.2.

The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund
Capital Programme position at 30th June 2019. Further detail on a scheme by
scheme basis is contained in Annex A.

Housing
Housing Standards
Property Services
ICT
Fleet /CCTV
Regeneration
Horticulture

External Contributions
Capital Receipts
Earmarked Reserves
Borrowing

2019/20
Approved
Budget

Q1
Changes

2019/20
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2019/20

Expected
Variance
2019/20

£

£

£

£

£

597,000
685,560
1,863,490
255,800
2,754,970
294,170
293,000
6,743,990

97,990
678,690
297,990
88,610
(3,430)
1,159,850

597,000
783,550
2,542,180
255,800
3,052,960
382,780
289,570
7,903,840

597,000
783,550
2,542,180
255,800
3,052,960
382,780
289,570
7,903,840

-

765,360
1,227,000
75,310
4,676,320
6,743,990

107,990
349,320
254,720
447,820
1,159,850

873,350
1,576,320
330,030
5,124,140
7,903,840

873,350
1,576,320
500,000
4,954,170
7,903,840

169,970
(169,970)
-

6.3.

The 2019/20 General Fund Capital budget was approved in February as part of
the Medium Term Financial Plan (£6,743.990); an increase to the programme of
£1,159,850 was then approved by the Executive in August as part of the
provisional outturn report related to the carry forward of capital funding from
2018/19. The overall approved budget now stands at £7,903,840.

6.4.

The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are as
follows:

6.5

(£1,159,850 increase) The carry forward of 2018/19 capital budget variances
as a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed
quicker than expected in the year.

There are no capital expenditure variances forecast at this early stage. Members
should note that the final outturn of the capital programme is dependant on the
progress of a number of schemes; including significant investment in Public
Buildings

11

Page 21

6.6

As part of the year end closure of accounts, the capital investment earmarked
reserve was increased to £500,000. This has therefore reduced the 2019/20
borrowing requirement.

12

Page 22

7

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1

This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s HRA capital
spending.

7.2

The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at
30th June 2019. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained in
Annex B.
Scheme

Asset Management Works

2019-20
Approved
Budget

Q1
Changes

2019-20
Revised
Budget

2019/20
Expected
Outturn

2019/20
Variance

£

£

£

£

£

3,456,740

321,170

3,777,910

3,376,910

(401,000)

Repairs Team Capital Works

295,000

-

295,000

295,000

-

Commissioning Fees

100,000

-

100,000

100,000

-

Vehicle Purchasing

242,500

-

242,500

242,500

-

4,094,240

321,170

4,415,410

4,014,410

(401,000)

2,099,030

-

2,099,030

2,099,030

-

61,000

-

61,000

61,000

-

1,934,210

321,170

2,255,380

1,854,380

(401,000)

4,094,240

321,170

4,415,410

4,014,410

(401,000)

Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Receipts Applied
HRA Contribution

7.3

The 2019/20 HRA Capital budget of £4,094,240 was approved in February 2019
as part of the MTFP.

7.4

The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules,
authorised the roll forward of £150,000 in unused budgets from 2018/19 to
facilitate delayed capital works to complete a major disabled adaptation (£50,000)
and to replace the boiler at Alma Square (£100,000). Further to this, in August
2019 the Executive approved an increase to the three year kitchen programme
budget resulting in an additional £171,170 being added to the 2019/20 HRA
Capital programme. This brings the total HRA Capital Programme to £4,415,410.

7.5

During the first quarter, £569,635 has been incurred on HRA Capital Schemes
principally on central heating boiler replacements, electrical works and aids and
adaptation schemes.

7.6

Much of the HRA spend is scheduled to commence in late autumn, however there
are two significant capital variance to note at this stage relating to asset
management works:


Window Replacement (£300,000) – Although this scheme has been recently
tendered, there has been little interest in the contract and no responses to the
tender process. A further procurement exercise is underway meaning that the
start date for this particular project is likely to be much later than expected.
13

Page 23



7.7

Any underspend this year will be re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated within
the next Medium Term Financial Plan.
Door Replacement (£101,000) – This scheme was also part of the Window
Replacement tender and has suffered the same delay. Underspends from this
year will also be re-profiled into 2020/21 and updated within the Medium Term
Financial Plan

Capital funding expected to be applied during 2019/20 is lower than forecast due
to the variances noted above.

14

Page 24

8

Treasury Management

8.1

This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high
level summary. The Audit and Regulatory Committee receives detailed operational
updates on treasury management.
Investments

8.1

Cash investments held on the 30th June 2019 totalled £13.5 million. The average
level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled £15.9
million and £34,000 interest was earned.

8.2

The Council has budgeted to receive £225,260 in investment income in 2019/20.
A shortfall of £90,000 is anticipated against this budget due to the continuation of
internal borrowing which reduces the levels of funds available for investment and
lower interest rates than forecast.

8.3

The loan to the Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust has now been fully drawn to the
value of £250,000. Drawdowns in quarter 1 were £60,000 on 25th April and
£50,000 on 25th May. Interest is charged at 6% which amounts to £14,360 during
2019/20. This was not anticipated in the budget, therefore will partially offset the
interest income shortfall above.
Borrowing

8.4

Outstanding borrowing at 30th June 2019 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,794,630 and £1,783,310 respectively
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2019/20. This was based on
existing external debt and new external debt to fund the borrowing requirements
arising from general fund capital programmes.

8.5

No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity has occurred during quarter 1, therefore
the budget is forecast to be £39,700 underspent overall: split £14,650 to the
general fund and £25,050 to the HRA.

15

Page 25

9

Revenue Collection

9.1

The collection rate outturn for Quarter 1 2019/20 was as follows:


Council Tax – 29.64% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2019,
compared to 29.47% for the same period last year.



Business Rates – 30.01% of Business Rates was collected by 30th June 2019,
compared with 31.12% for the same period last year. 0.88% of this year-onyear shortfall in performance is attributed to variations on payment plans of
some large hereditaments and are not anticipated to continue to create a
shortfall by year end.



Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of
Quarter 1 was £178,520 which compares with £461,117 at 30th June 2018.

16

Page 26

Annex A
General Fund Capital Programme Update – 30th June 2019

Scheme

2019/20
Approved
Budget

Q1
Changes

2019/20
Revised
Budget

Expected
Outturn
2019/20

Expected
Variance
2019/20

£

£

£

£

£

Housing & Housing Standards
Affordable Housing Project

597,000

-

597,000

597,000

-

Disabled Facilities Grants
Landlord Accreditation Grant Scheme

685,560
-

30,260
67,730

715,820
67,730

715,820
67,730

-

1,282,560

97,990

1,380,550

1,380,550

-

1,863,490

678,690

2,542,180

2,542,180

-

1,863,490

678,690

2,542,180

2,542,180

-

255,800

-

255,800

255,800

-

255,800

-

255,800

255,800

-

2,704,970

297,990

3,002,960

3,002,960

-

50,000

-

50,000

50,000

-

2,754,970

297,990

3,052,960

3,052,960

-

45,000

-

45,000

45,000

-

249,170

88,610

337,780

337,780

-

294,170

88,610

382,780

382,780

-

Cemeteries

190,000

(3,430)

186,570

186,570

-

Play Facilities

103,000

-

103,000

103,000

-

293,000

(3,430)

289,570

289,570

-

6,743,990

1,159,850

7,903,840

7,903,840

-

Property Services
Asset Management Programme
ICT
Fleet Management/CCTV
Vehicle Acquisition
CCTV
Regeneration
Heritage Regeneration Grants
Buxton Crescent & Spa
Horticulture

Total General Fund

17

Page 27

Annex B
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update - 30th June 2019

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS
Roofing & External Works
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Central Heating
Electrical Works
Aids & Adaptations
Aids & Adaptations (Sherwood Road)
Aids & Adaptations (Lyne Avenue)
Structural Works (Various)
Lift Replacements
ALMA Square – Boiler Replacement
Works to Communal Areas
Window Replacement Programme
Door Replacement Programme
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases

TOTAL SPEND

Approved
Budget
2019/20

Q1
Changes

2019/20
Revised
Budget

2019/20
Expected
Outturn

Over /
(Under)
Spend

£

£

£

£

£

495,000
383,000
266,000
276,500
424,000
295,000
36,240

171,170
50,000
-

495,000
554,170
266,000
276,500
424,000
295,000
50,000
36,240

495,000
554,170
266,000
276,500
424,000
295,000
50,000
36,240

-

150,000
100,000
150,000
660,000
221,000
3,456,740

100,000
321,170

150,000
100,000
100,000
150,000
660,000
221,000
3,777,910

150,000
100,000
100,000
150,000
360,000
120,000
3,376,910

(300,000)
(101,000)
(401,000)

35,000
200,000
60,000
295,000

-

35,000
200,000
60,000
295,000

35,000
200,000
60,000
295,000

-

100,000
100,000

-

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000

-

242,500

-

242,500

242,500

-

242,500

-

242,500

242,500

-

4,094,240

321,170

4,415,410

4,014,410

(401,000)

18

Page 28

APPENDIX B

2019/20
First Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 29

1.

Introduction

1.1

A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from a Procurement Strategy which was
approved by Council in February 2017.

1.2

The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives. The key actions in in
the strategy included:








1.4

Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of
contracts.
Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of excellence
to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils
Revising Procurement Procedure Rules to support transparency, timeliness
of contract award and greater control
Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as
appropriate
Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
Implementation of e-tendering
Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement
opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for
consideration during 2019.

Page 30

2.

First Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1

The activity supported by the procurement function for the first quarter April 2019
to June 2019 is summarised below:
First Quarter

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

High Value

Low Value

(> £181,000)

(< £181,000)

2
2

23
5
28

Total

23
7
30

2.2

Annex A provides details of the 30 procurement exercises completed during the
first quarter.

2.3

The retendering of the insurance contract gave rise to annual savings of
£195,350; of which £179,070 is relevant to 2019/20. This saving is split between
the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account. Procurement savings will
continue to be monitored throughout the year and any savings identified will be
offset against the efficiency programme.

Page 31

3.

2019/20 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1

The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting
in 2019/20.
2019/20

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)
TOTAL

High Value

Low Value

(> £181,000)

(< £181,000)

16
8
24

55
42
97

Total

71
50
121

In addition to the above, there are 63 listed entries brought forward from previous
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).
3.2

Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
delivery in 2019/20 includes:





CCTV Maintenance Contract
Construction Materials Supplies – Direct Services
HRA Capital Works: Windows & Doors, Central Heating, Roofing, Bathroom
programmes
Banking Services Contract (currently under a value for money review)
IT Desktop Support Contract

Page 32

4.

Procurement Performance

4.1

This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2

Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below:
Performance Indicator

Target

Performance at 30th
June 2019

72%

50%

85%

82%

96%

95%

% of Alliance Procurement Activity
on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as % of
gross expenditure budget
% of invoices paid within 30 days

Performance Indicators – targets off track
4.3

There is a continuing programme of regular service review meetings to ensure
planned activity is captured and monitored on the plan. New processes have been
implemented within the creditors function to enhance the workflows to maximise
on efficient working practices. The procurement staff are continuing to work with
service areas to ensure they are compliant in commissioning supplies, services or
works and that internal processes are adhered to.

Page 33

ANNEX A
First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC
Contract Title

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award
Detail

Term /
Duration

Total
Contract
Value £

Alma Square
Communal
Boiler
Replacement –
Installation
Works

Installation works Alma
Square Communal Boiler
replacement

One Off
(Minor
works)

Assets HRA
Capital

Framework
Direct
Award

Warmer
Energy
Services Ltd

n/a

73,296

One Public
Estate (HPBC)
Consultancy
Support

Appointment of Consultant –
Review of HPBC and DCC
Depot Facilities / Estates

One Off

Regeneration

Open
Tender

BNP Paribas
Real Estate
Advisory &
Property
Management
UK

6
months

30,000

Cross Street
Glossop Council
Houses Structural wall
repairs

Minor works contract:
Structural wall repairs to
Council Houses on Cross
Street Glossop

One Off
(Minor
works)

Assets HRA
Capital

Request for
Quotations
(RFQ)

Premier
Brickwork
M/C Ltd

n/a

22,335

Car Park
Lighting Pavilion
Gardens - Under
Croft

Installation of caged anti
vandal lighting in Pavilion
Gardens under-croft car park

One Off
(Minor
works)

Assets Capital

Single
Source
Exemption
Direct
Award

HEC
Contracting
Ltd

n/a

22,269

Council Property
Disabled
Adaptation
Lyne Avenue
Glossop

Disabled Adaptation - Out
building to adapted Wet
Room conversion at 16 Lyne
Avenue Glossop

One Off
(Minor
works)

Assets HRA
Capital

Request for
Quotations
(RFQ)

Wright Build
Ltd

n/a

21,853

Purchase of Mini
Digger
High Peak
Cemeteries

One of purchase of mini
digger (plant equipment)

One Off
(Supply)

Operational
Services –
Grounds
Maintenance

Single
Source
Exemption
Direct
Award

Parkway
Plant Sales
Ltd

n/a

16,050

Ecological
Surveys and
Advice

Consultancy – call off
arrangements for surveys

Recurring

Regeneration

Single
Source
Exemption
Direct
Award

Derbyshire
Wildlife Trust

3 yrs
(fixed)

15,838

Contingency /
Emergency
Planning
Arrangements

Emergency Planning
Contribution

Recurring

Assistant Chief
Execs

SLA
(Public to
Public
agreement)

Derbyshire
County
Council

yearly

15,144

n/a

13,945

Contingency
Planning
Accessible Play
Equipment –
Manor Park
Glossop

Accessible items of play
equipment including safety
surfacing, an accessible
flush roundabout and a set of
swings with Mirage seats

One Off
(supply &
fit)

Operational
Services Leisure

Page 34

Framework
Direct
Award

Wicksteed
Leisure Ltd

Property
Advisory
Services HPBC
Owned Land
(ACDP)

Consultancy Services re
HPBC Accelerated Housing
Delivery Programme – Soft
Market testing and Land
Disposal support

One Off

Regeneration

Framework
Further
competition

Lambert
Hampston
Smith

n/a

13,000

Marketing
Consultancy Branding Toolkit
for Buxton

Appointment as part of the
adopted visitor economy
strategy

One Off

Regeneration

Request for
Quotations
(RFQ)

The Way
Design
(TWD)

2
months

10.942

Alma Square
Communal
Boiler
Replacement –
Materials Supply

Alma Square Communal
Boiler replacement –
Materials Supply

One Off
(Minor
works)

Assets HRA
Capital

Framework
Direct
Award

Grahams
The
Plumbers
Ltd

n/a

9,029

Market St
Buxton –
Viability
Assessment

Professional Services
Appointment

One Off

Regeneration

Single
Source
Exemption
Direct
Award

Lambert
Hampston
Smith

n/a

7,400

Re-Pointing Void Property
Padfield Main
Road Glossop

External and associated
works to Council property
(Front, Rear and Gable
elevations)

One Off
(Minor
Works)

Assets HRA
Capital

Request for
Quotations
(RFQ)

Edward
Anthony Ltd
(T/a GunPoint)

n/a

5,454

Buxton Visitor
Economy
Consultancy
and Advocacy
Support

Consultancy Appointment

One Off

Regeneration

Single
Source
Exemption
Direct
Award

James
Berresford

5
months

3,500

Manor Park
Glossop
Concession
2019 Season

Children’s rides at Manor
Park Glossop

Recurring

Leisure

Request for
bids
(income)

Balloon
Occasions
Ltd

6
months

(2,000)

Food and Beverage Supply Contacts at Pavilion Gardens
A number of existing contracts for supplies to Pavilion Gardens Buxton have not been renewed
prior to their expiry in first quarter, due to the Operation transfer under Concession Contract to
Parkwood Leisure Ltd

Page 35

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)
Contract Title

Brief contract description

Insurance
Services
Contract HPBC
& SMDC

Provision of insurance cover
for council's activities
including property, casualty,
motor, engineering,
additional cover, standalone
policies

Recurring
or One Off

Recurring

Service Area

Finance

Procedure

Open Tender
Procedure
OJEU

Award
Detail

Zurich
Municipal
Insurance

Term
(years)

5 yrs

Future Electricity Supply
agreement for both
Authorities buildings and
assets (Oct 2020 – 2024)

TCV (5 yrs)
=
£1,887,545
Recurring

Assets

Framework
Call off

Total Gas
and Power
Ltd

4 yrs

Outright purchase of 2 vans
for pest control services

TCV (4 yrs)
=
1,207,608
(variable on
usage)
One Off
(Supply)

Operational
Services Fleet

Framework
Further
Competition

Greenhous
Fleet
Services
Ltd

n/a

29,772

Recurring

Customer
Services

Framework
Call off

Meltieme
Ltd

n/a

2,583

Procured via TPPL vehicle
Framework
Corporate
Uniforms Supply
Customer
Services

Purchase of uniform items
for Customer Services

HPBC =
761,120
SMDC=
446,488

Renewed via ESPO (Eastern
Shires Purchasing Org)
Framework Contract
agreement

Purchase of
Vehicles – Pest
Control Service

HPBC =
1,228,560
SMDC =
658,985

Procured with Worcester
Consortium Authorities
Electricity
Supply for
HPBC & SMDC
Buildings

Total
Contract
Value £

Procured via ESPO 114
Framework Contract
agreement

The following contracts have been reviewed on the work plan and have been combined within wider projects currently in progress
to be delivered 2019/2020
HPBC / SMDC
CCTV system
maintenance
agreements
(Included in
REFER TO
PROC-4066)

Individual Contracts for
service and maintenance for
each Authority – included in
wider Public Realm contract
procurement due to be
awarded Sept 2019

Recurring

Provision of
Printers
photocopiers
and MDF's
across the
Alliance

Individual Contracts for
service and maintenance
support for each Authority’s
print output units – included
in wider print rationalisation
and Hybrid mail project

Recurring

Building Security
and Call out
Response
Services

Out of hours call out services
at HPBC SMDC main offices

Recurring

Communities

Open Tender
Procedure
OJEU

Customer
Services

Pending

Assets

n/a

Pending Contract Award

Internal Project Initiated

Continuation of Existing
Arrangements

Existing arrangements
continuing pending FM
contract implementation

Page 36

Page 37

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: April to June 2019 (Q1)

High Peak Q1 Summary
The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to June 2019 in relation to the
Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects (NB a revised Corporate Plan should be in place by
October of this year). The report also provides an overview of the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we
handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and compliments.
Performance Overview
There are 121 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak (10 less than last year). The chart below
shows the results for the first three months of the year and reveals an 8% dip on Q1 compared to June 2018. The actions being taken to
address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

Page 38

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the previous Corporate
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects.
Off Track

100%

100%

80%

80%

60%

60%
40%

40%

60%
40%

20%

20%

0%

0%
On Track

Off Track

In danger of going off Track
On Track

48%
33%
19%

Not yet started / decision
awaited
Complete / Closed

Better

Weaker

No Change

Customer Feedback Overview
The number of complaints received during the first three months of 2019/20 is marginally higher than last year but both repeat complaints and
responding to complaints are on track. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and the repeat issues.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work

HP Aim 1: June Results 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim1 : Trends June
2019/20
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 39

Under Aim One, Benefits processing; use of temporary accommodation, and external sports funding are all ‘off track’ as at the close of quarter
one. The impact of increased changes of circumstance notifications is affecting the benefit processing times.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of June 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 homelessness prevention

Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action

Page 40

Continue to influence the provision
of accessible health and social care
services through the Council’s
Scrutiny work programme
Implement the Council’s new sport
and physical activity strategy and
carry out research into nil cost
facility provision being achieved by
other councils; in order to achieve
improved health and value for
money outcomes
Complete the review of the CCTV
system and implement the agreed
recommendations

Status Commentary – June
The Community Select Committee met on 19th June and members received a general overview of
scrutiny.
The new High Peak contract has been operating since April 2019. Outstanding compliance and R
& M actions are being worked through with the contractor and DCC, working through schedule
20. Contractual KPIs have been agreed with the provider and aligned across both the SMDC and
HPBC contracts. The commissioning board is to be arranged and a meeting will be held with
Parkwood in the next few weeks including assets. The facilities management element is to be
reviewed.
The CCTV contract is currently out to tender. Project group due to meet at the end of June.
Report to be issued to confirm award once completed.

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

HP Aim 2: June Results 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 2: Trends June 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 41

A large proportion of High Peak’s ‘off track’ measures relate to its housing stock PIs (rent loss, job rates, repairs, re-let times). Other areas of
performance that are below the profiled target for the year include sickness absence, aspects of procurement activity, and FOI requests dealt
with on time.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of June 2019 the following PIs outstripped their target:






rent and sundry debt collection rates
twitter and Facebook followers
complaint handling and repeat issues
internal audit recommendations implemented
IT systems and network availability

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Deliver the Channel Shift
Programme

Page 42

Provide advice and support for
residents affected by the rollout
of Universal Credit
Continue to embed good
information management
practices through the ASSURED
framework

Develop and implement a plan to
identify new and innovative ways
of generating income

Status

Commentary – June
The Digital Strategy is currently under review.
E billing: Go live of the IE4 e-notification module is approaching, with staff from Revs, Bens and
Customer Services working closely to configure & deliver a new solution before the end of June when
our existing mechanism is de-commissioned. There is potential that the go live date of 1st July may
slip. Civica open access has been extended while ongoing work takes place with IEG4.
The environmental reporting app was looked at as part of the CGI review. This will be included in the
new digital programme going forward, the work will be prioritized.
Phase 2: Universal credit roll out (rents).
Head of Finance to develop PID. Staff resource has been seconded to rents (as part of a fixed term
placement)
The Assured framework is regularly publicised via Keeping You Informed and staff are encouraged to
report data breaches. The GDPR action plan is on track, progress is monitored through the
Information Governance Group.
The online GDPR training package has been rolled out to all staff on a team by team basis.
Information Asset Registers have been reviewed by audit and will be re-issued to Managers in July to
outline gaps and inconsistencies. A programme of challenge sessions is being compiled where
managers will be invited to attend Information Governance Group to review their registers
Fees and charges- Next review for 2019/20 budget setting/MTFP. Cash-up against efficiency target to
be undertaken during 2019/20.
Advertising/Sponsorship -The current status being reviewed and a formal project board is being
established. A new policy is to be written and adopted.
Affordable Housing - Continuing to review options for the future of Ascent.
Empty Homes-The empty property working group has scheduled quarterly meetings to review
actions/ progress contributing to the Empty Property Strategy:
-A questionnaire survey will be sent to all empty property owners during the summer period, starting
with High Peak. Analysis of responses will identify why properties remain empty and what
action/assistance would help to bring the properties back into use.
-Empty homes and private rented council web pages have been developed to offer relevant advice
and information which provide a channel to deal with empty property queries. These will be kept
under review and include: an outline of council interest in empty properties and enforcement powers;
consideration of cost associated with leaving a property empty; options for bringing an empty home
back into use, to sell, let and improve the property.
The EPIC purchaser and repair scheme operating across Staffordshire Moorlands has provided 2
completions to date.

Priority Action
Refresh and implement the Asset
Management Plan, including a
review of public estate, and
ensure adequate facilities
management arrangements are
in place

Status

Commentary – June
Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC with 3 months notice.
Corporate and other relevant policies have been fed through to CIPFA for the Asset Management Plan.
Team members have met with CIPFA regarding the compliance audit and the report has been
received. A meeting took place at the beginning of February with CIPFA to review the current status. A
system demonstration took place at the end of April with the supplier. Further investigation of the
system's functionality is being investigated to ensure it can adequately hold the data.

Page 43
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 3: Results June 2019/20

Aim 3: Support economic development and
regeneration
On Track

Off Track

HP Aim 3: Trends June 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 44

The Council has a perfect record on planning processing targets with all targets currently on track. The two ‘off track’ measures relate to the
Pavilion Gardens complex with both footfall and Trip Advisor satisfaction ratings below target but up on last year.

Celebrating Success:

At the end of June 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 Major and minor developments allowed on appeal

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Together with partners work
for the delivery of the Buxton
Crescent development
Support the development of
Glossop Halls

Page 45

Implement the accelerated
housing delivery programme

Status Commentary - June
The project Board has now been established and projects prioritised. The invitation to tender for
the development branding toolkit for Buxton is now complete. This will see the development of a
creative brand, logo and strap line reflecting the vision set out in the Buxton Visitor Economy
Strategy. The property will be handed over to the Crescent Trust once completed- the lease has
been drafted.
Work on the town hall roof is ongoing. The clock has been repaired and a proposed service
schedule received. Costs escalated during the renovation due to additional work and time
involved in cleaning rather than replacing roof tiles and the removal of rubble found in the roof
space.
The first of two survey reports on the Market Hall roof indicate the roof needs replacing. The
further report will indicate the likely costs, options and timescales.
Phase 2 (renovation and access to the Town Hall) is in the early planning stage.
The use of Victoria Hall (library floor) has begun. A community open day event has been held, a
friends group has been established, work on leases and management is being negotiated.
Discussions with all relevant land owners and developers as well as DCC and Homes England are
on-going:
Glossop package: Glossop and Gamesley OPE funding confirmed. Project meeting was scheduled
for 28/03/2019 and the project board has been identified. HIF funding has now been confirmed.
Buxton package: Homes England has visited the sites and is pleased with the progress. They have
also met with Hogshaw and Waterswallows landowners and developers to carry out viability
appraisals. The funding agreement documents have been received and forwarded to legal.
Officers continue to meet regularly with the developers of the site regarding land assembly. Draft
designs for the preferred position of the roundabout have been issued, costs are being reported
and a golf architect has been appointed. Memorandum of Understanding's are in place with
Hogshaw developers and DCC, the MOU with Waterswallows developers is being finalised.
Granby Road- LAAC funding has been confirmed for Granby Road B. Granby Road A is being
progressed with Countryside and NCHA.

Priority Action
Implement the accelerated
business growth and
employment programme

Status Commentary - June
Wrens Nest: A meeting was held in March with an external company to take forward the
discussions around options for the Council to consider supporting delivery of a scheme at Wrens
Nest. The company have set out a number of options for the Council that would help with delivery
of the scheme and have presented the market analysis and other clarifications sought by the
Council in respect of each of the options. Site ownership details for land allocated in the Local plan
for the extension of the Staden Lane Industrial Estate have been clarified.
Goyt Bridge: S106 expires March 2019. A report will be written regarding the transfer of land, the
project will then be closed.

Page 46

Chapel Masterplan: Chapel-en-le-Frith Parish Council has discussed with BE Group potential
conditions that could be included with a conditional land sale agreement relating to part of the
allotment site. Any such conditions would be designed to ensure that development constraints
can be addressed and the agreement would be terminable if works were not started (or
completed) within a certain timeframe. BE Group has been instructed to liaise with Bevan Brittan
on the inclusion of recommended conditions within a land sale agreement.
The Parish Council is briefing potential development partners on the process for submission of
best and final offers.
Buxton Station: Planning applications for the health hub and McCarthy & Stone development
have been approved. Project managers have been appointed via the OPE process. DCHS is
awaiting the outcome of the bid to STP programme.

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

HP Aim 4: June Results 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 4 : Trends June 2019/20
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

On Track

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 47

Aim Four is an area of strong performance for the Council; High Peak is estimated to be ‘off track’ for residual waste tonnages only at this
stage.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of June 2019 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 fly-tipping incidents
 % household waste sent for recycling (estimated)
 missed bins

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the
transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint
venture company, to deliver waste,
streets and ground maintenance services
on behalf of the Council in order to
achieve improved performance and value
for money outcomes.
Establish a developer open space
contributions plan

Page 48

Commence the preparatory work needed
to facilitate the expansion of Glossop
Cemetery in 2019/20

Status

Commentary – June
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) go live date is still to be confirmed but is
expected to be Autumn 2019. Internal AES project board meeting took place
Thursday 13th June. Assets and Legal are working together on the leases/licences,
Finance have confirmed the budget information is ready. When a transfer date has
been confirmed, HR will commence the notice/dates/measures/procedures etc.

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy has been completed and forms part
of a wider Developer Contributions SPD (Supplementary Planning Document). The
intention is to contract this work out to a consultant and the draft specification is
now being developed. The tender will be advertised in January 2019 with a view to
an appointment being made in February. Following consultation, the SPD should be
adopted by the end of 2019.
The design for the extension has been completed, trial holes have been dug.T2
assessment has been completed, Environmental Agency comments received. The
plan of action has been sent to the Environmental Agency for approval. We now
need to include the current drainage system within all proposals as this now has to
comply with new legislation. Water testing is taking place and path maintenance
will be picked up on the condition survey. Repairs are to be included in the capital
programme.

Page 49

Page 50

Areas for Improvement: June 2019
Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Aim 1: Fit for purpose
housing stock that meets
the needs of tenants

Assistant Chief
Executive

Target
2019/20

Result
June 2019

18 days

19.49 days

7 days

12.86 days

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

High Peak
Time taken to process new
housing benefit claims
Time taken to process
change of circumstances

New claims – fewer claims received due to
Universal Credit has made it difficult to hit our
target.
Change of Circs – Universal Credit claims have
increased the amount of changes we have had to
process therefore it has not been possible to hit
our target.

Page 51

However conversations with the DWP indicate that
we are below the national average.
Number of household in
temporary accommodation

Level of external funding
awarded to support the
physical activity and sport
strategy
Average time from request
to repair (DLO)

15

21

Out of the 21, just one case was accommodated in
B&B; all of the others are in our own stock or
designated units.
Applications are being worked on with partner
organisations, outcomes are not yet known.

Aim 1: Provision of high
quality leisure facilities

Head of Service
Commissioning

33% success
rate, Min
£60k

£0

Aim 2: More effective use
of Council assets

Head of Direct
Services

13 days

14.33 days

This PI is currently off track. It is hard to implement
measures to improve as the classification of the
jobs raised dictate the timescales that they need
to be completed in. However, it must be noted
that all classifications of Jobs have average
completion times lower than the targets (P1 target
1 day vs. actual of 0.14 days; P2 target 7 days vs.
actual 2.51 days; P3 target 21 days vs. actual 9.03
days & P4 target 112 days vs. actual of 29.91 days)

Page 52

Target
2019/20

Result
June 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Head of Direct
Services

4.7

4.54

This PI is slightly off track. This is due to the
seasonal nature of jobs that are completed at this
time of the year. These jobs generally take longer
to complete which has a negative impact on the
average. It is expected that this PI will meet its
target by year end.

% Rent loss due to vacant
stock

Assistant Chief
Executive

0.86%

0.92%

Current Rent loss due to vacant stock £154,631.47.£117,070.73 of this figure is for
properties in Marian Ct and Church View
£19,726.74 of this figure is for Padfield Main Road

Average time taken to re-let
Council homes

Assistant Chief
Executive

25 days

31.2 days

This is a 2.6 day improvement on last month.
Performance excluding hard to let properties was
18.5 days and 7.9 days for minor voids. 30% of all
allocations so far this year have been completed
with zero void loss.

Head of Legal and
Elections

95%

78.41%
(138/176)

We are reviewing response times with service
areas. We will also be reminding Managers of their
responsibility to meet the guidelines around FOI
response times

Assistant Chief
Executive

a)37% b)23%
c)40%

a) 39%
b) 26%
c) 35%

The total number of contacts has reduced by 14%
(compared to June 2018) as we continue to get it
right first time and provide information on our
website. We are also building additional forms for
customers to self serve i.e. Licensing forms.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

NEW: Average number of
jobs completed per
operative per day

Aim 2: More effective use
of Council assets

FOI requests:% responded
to within statutory time
frame

No. / % of interactions: a)
phone b) face to face c) web

Aim 2: Easily available
services provided right
first time

Target
2019/20

Result
June 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Head of Finance

2%
improvement
to 2018/19

82%

A number of on-contract agreements ceased by
HPBC as the contracting Authority in Qtr. 1 which
had been previously included as on contract
expenditure. The Pavilion Gardens outsourcing
has resulted in a reduction of large expenditure
measured against on contract arrangements. The
forward plan details a pipeline of activity to
address the current category areas identified as off
contract arrangements which will be reviewed
during 19/20.

Aim 2:
A high performing and
well motivated workforce

Head of OD &
Transformation

9 days

2.73 days

Average days sickness per FTE: short term absence
0.73 days; long term absence 2 days.

Aim 3:
Flourishing town centres
that support the local
economy

Head of Service
Commissioning

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Use of contracts register:
annual contract spend as a
% of gross expenditure
budget

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Ave days sickness per FTE
(include short & long term
absence per FTE)

Pavilion Gardens : Trip
Advisor rating (%
good/excellent)

(2.27 for
the
Alliance)

Page 53

Measure of Success (PI)

Pavilion Gardens: footfall

Out of 612 FTE days lost to sickness during Q1, 453
of those days are due to long term illnesses across
12 staff members. Out of the 12, 6 have returned
to work, the remainder are being managed in
accordance with the sickness policy.

93.75%

93.53%

Of the 1624 reviews on Trip Advisor 1519 are
either good or excellent. The results in the same
period 2018-19 were 93.10% thus demonstrating
the improved performance for the first quarter.

Q1 170,000

162,824

Results for Q1 in 2019-20 are 19,259 higher than
for the same period last year, yet still off target.
June results were affected by the inclement
weather and whilst footfall was up 6,047 over the
same month last year it was hoped the results
would be higher. Boats were introduced to the
lake at Pavilion Gardens in July and Parkwood are
continuing to develop and introduce new services
to increase footfall throughout the year.

Target
2019/20

Result
June 2019

Head of Service
Commissioning

445 kg

115.95kg

Head of Finance

72%

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

KG’s of residual waste per
household

Aim 4: Effective recycling
and waste management

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

(estimate)

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
Result is estimated. A large number of key figures
used to calculate this figure have been estimated
based on last year's performance.

Joint Alliance Measures
% of Procurement activity
on forward plan (Joint
Alliance Measure)

50%

Page 54

Q1 reviews are in progress with Service areas to
capture any non recurring procurement
requirements for the remainder of 19/20.
Performance in Q1 outturn evidences the impact
of a rise of Single Source requests which have not
been included as planned exercises on the
Procurement Forward Plan. We will continue to
work with Services areas through regular
communication regarding future spend
requirements to be passed through to the
Procurement team in advance

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q1 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link

Agenda Item 5

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
10 October 2019
TITLE:

Corporate Plan 2019-23

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Anthony McKeown - Leader

CONTACT OFFICER:

Andrew Stokes - Executive Director
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARD:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – High Peak Borough Council - Summary of Corporate Plan
2019/20 to 2022/23
Appendix B – Corporate Plan – Priority Actions (September 2019)
Appendix C – Summary of Outcomes from Member Priority Setting Workshop
(July 2019)
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to agree a Corporate Plan which will cover the
period 2019 to 2023. The Plan sets out the Council’s vision, aims and
objectives and provides clear direction for the delivery of services and the
achievement of positive outcomes for residents.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Executive:




Recommends that Council approves the Council’s vision, aims, objectives,
influencing objectives and priorities
Adopts a process of internal and external consultation and engagement as
set out in the report
Supports the establishment of a working group to agree a new
performance framework.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate
objectives and set key priorities for the medium term i.e. in the case of the

Page 55

Borough Council covering a period of up to four years (the life of a political
administration). It in effect establishes the Council’s commitments in the
delivery of services and community leadership to the residents of the High
Peak.
3.2

A summary of the proposed Corporate Plan is attached at Appendix A.

3.3

The plan sets out the Council’s vision, aims and objectives for the next for four
years. It also identifies the outcomes which will be given the highest priority
and the areas in which the Council will be seeking to influence partners to
improve the quality of life for our residents.

3.4

The achievement of the Council’s objectives will be supported by a number of
priority actions to ensure step improvements and maximum impact upon the
priority outcomes. The key actions committed in the Corporate Plan are
detailed in Appendix B.

3.5

The new Corporate Plan importantly will be steered by the new political
administration with the mandate provided in the May local elections. However
the Corporate Plan is a document that needs to be owned by the whole
Council. As a consequence the Council held a members’ priority setting day
the outcomes from which (detail attached at Appendix C) have been taken
into account in the development of the new plan. This report was considered
by the Corporate Select Committee on 30 September 2019.

3.6

Once the core of the Corporate Plan has been adopted, members will then be
in a position to determine a set of local performance indicators and targets. It
is intended that this, as in previous years, is undertaken by the Corporate
Select Committee through a Working Group. This approach has proved to be
successful in the past.

4

How this Report Links with Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Corporate Plan will establish the Council’s priorities.

5

Options

5.1

There are two options available to members in respect of the approval of the
Corporate Plan




Approve the draft Corporate Plan and recommended Council adoption
subject to comments from the Corporate Select Committee and the
Executive (Recommended) – This will ensure that positive outcomes can
be delivered to residents in line with priorities which are established
around their needs and aspirations.
Reject the draft Corporate Plan (Not Recommended)

Page 56

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
Maintaining low levels of crime and preventing the fear of crime is one of
the Council’s objectives. Supporting the police in the prevention and
detection of crime is one of the influencing priorities.

6.2

Workforce
The Corporate Plan will provide the direction for the workforce by setting
service objectives and priorities. These will inform the development of
individual service plans which will form the basis of the employee
appraisal scheme

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity
and Equality Policies.
An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the
draft Corporate Plan. The aim of undertaking an EIA at this stage is to
determine how the Plan aims to meet the needs of our diverse
community, that it will provide an opportunity for the Council to fulfil its
Equality Duty and that there are no unintended negative consequences.
The Corporate Plan is ‘high level’ and strategic in nature and it is the
detailed targets and subsequent resource allocation that will determine its
effective implementation.
The key finding or recommendation of this EIA is that we use the
proposed internal and external consultation on the Corporate Plan to
engage target groups (such as minority communities and people with
disabilities) building engagement over time with our community with a
view to empowering users, supporting the communities own efforts with
the aim of achieving improved outcomes.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The Medium Term Financial Plan will be updated with the contents of the
plan to ensure that resources are directed towards priorities

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
Protection of the environment is one of the Council’s four aims

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The plan will be subject to external and internal consultation.

Page 57

6.8

Risk Assessment
Good risk management will be a key ingredient to the effective delivery of
the new Corporate Plan.
The Corporate Plan contains details of the significant risks its successful
implementation. These risks have been extracted from the Council’s Risk
Register. The key significant corporate risks are as follows:
 Risk of insufficient funds to deliver plan
 Risk that the Council does not deliver its committed efficiencies and
rationalisation plans
 Risk of reducing resources as a consequence of future local
government finance settlements
 Demographic changes placing additional pressures on Council service
delivery obligations
 Risk that the Council can not retain an adequate workforce
 Impact of partners’ poor performance on service delivery and risk that
partner assurances are not in place or are inadequate
 The impact of extreme weather events and environmental issues
across the High Peak
The Council’s Risk Management Policy requires effective management of
all risks. Actions are established to mitigate these key corporate risks
along with service specific high risks and project risks. Progress against
these actions is monitored as part of the Council’s Performance
Management Framework.
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers

Location

Contact

Buxton Town Hall

Andrew Stokes
Executive Director
(Transformation)

Page 58

7

Background and Introduction

7.1

The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate
objectives and set key priorities for the medium term i.e. in the case of the
Borough Council covering a period of up to four years (the life of a political
administration). It in effect establishes the Council’s commitments in the
delivery of services and community leadership to the residents and other
stakeholders of the High Peak.

7.2

The existing Corporate Plan was agreed by the Council in October 2015 and
was developed in the period that followed the local elections in May 2015. It is
appropriate that following the recent election in May 2019 that there is a
fundamental review of the Corporate Plan. The purpose of this report
therefore is for the Council to:




Consider and approve the core of a new Corporate Plan i.e. vision, aims,
objectives and priorities;
Agree to a process for wider consultation and communication of its
contents; and
Agree on a method for the development of a new local performance
framework to facilitate monitoring of progress with the delivery of the plan.

8

Development of the Corporate Plan

8.1

The Corporate Plan needs to be developed in the context of the following
framework of understanding:





8.2

The views and aspirations of High Peak citizens - as established by the
extensive consultation activity undertaken on a regular basis;
A clear understanding of empirical evidence – such as demographic
information, quality of life indicators, impact of climate change and any
other evidenced factors that identify local issues that need to be tackled;
Recognition of the national and regional policy framework – taking
into account central government requirements and the requirements of
regional agencies where appropriate; and
Learning from the progress made by the Council and understanding
the improvements that need to be made – as provided by the ongoing
internal and external assessments of the Council’s performance.

The new Corporate Plan will build on the existing plans and priorities and
importantly will be steered by the new political administration with the
mandate provided in the May local elections. However the Corporate Plan is a
document that needs to be owned by the whole Council. As a consequence
the Council held a members’ priority setting day. This took place on 16th July.
The issues raised by the members on the day are summarised at Appendix C.
These views have been taken into account in the development of the new
plan and will also be important in developing the supporting performance
framework.

Page 59

9

Council’s Vision, Aims and Objectives

9.1

The new political administration committed in their manifesto to make a
number of changes to the way in which the Council does business. They
made a number of key pledges which were as follows:







9.2

We will work to have the Council use more local firms for projects keeping
more money locally and provide more apprenticeships
We will work to improve the Council’s housing repair service and work to
improve conditions for private renters and get more council housing built
We will support the declaration of a climate emergency and work to put in
place practical policies and actions within the control of HPBC to respond
to this.
We will work to support your local community from supporting events like
community clean ups to getting the council working on your side to make
where you live a better place to live by tackling your concerns like dog
fouling, litter and fly tipping.
We will continue our monthly shoppers’ surgery and find additional ways to
make sure we are out there listening to you, sharing information on what is
happening and responding to your concerns getting the council on your
side.

The vision therefore has been amended to reflect the change in emphasis.
The proposed vision is:
“Working together to protect and invest in the High Peak with the
Council on your side”

9.3

This vision is articulated further by four aims:





Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High
Peak
A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking council
Protect and create jobs in the High Peak by supporting economic
growth, development & regeneration
Protect and improve the environment including responding to the
climate emergency

9.4

The first aim recognises that the Council has a broader role and has to work
with partners to deliver more holistic outcomes. The second aim commits to
the continuous improvement of services and reinforces the desire to provide
value for money.

9.5

The third and fourth aims form the additional ambitions of the Council which
continue to be focused around supporting the development of the local
economy and protecting the environment.

9.6

It is necessary to establish objectives to ensure that the aims are developed
into clear actions.

Page 60

9.7

The Corporate Plan proposes 22 objectives split across the 4 aims. The
objectives are detailed in the table below:
Aim

Supporting our
communities to
create a
healthier, safer,
cleaner High
Peak

Objectives







A responsive,
smart,
financially
resilient and
forward
thinking
Council








Protect and
create jobs in
the High Peak
by supporting
economic
growth,
development &
regeneration









Protect and
Improve the
environment
including
responding to
the climate
emergency

9.8





Effective relationship with strategic partners
Effective provision of high-quality public amenities, clean streets and
environmental health
Fit for purpose housing that meets the need of tenants and residents
Practical support of community safety arrangements
Provision of high quality leisure facilities both in formal leisure centres
and swimming pools and out in our communities
Work with our partners and the community to address health
inequality, food and fuel poverty, mental health and loneliness
Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable
whilst offering value for money
Ensure our services are readily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels and provided “right first time”
Invest in our staff to ensure we have the internal expertise to deliver
our plans by supporting our high performing and well motivated
workforce
More effective use of Council assets to benefit our communities
Effective procurement with a focus on local businesses
Use innovation, technology and partnership with others to help
improve the efficiency of services, improve customer satisfaction and
reduce our impact on the environment
Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
Work to create flourishing town centres and thriving high streets that
support the local economy
Promote tourism to maximise local benefit
High quality development and building control with an “open for
business approach”
Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents,
businesses and visitors
Working to support existing local businesses, both large and small
across the High Peak as they respond to future challenges
Supporting the development of innovative green jobs and businesses
across the High Peak
Effective recycling and waste management
Effective provision of quality parks and open spaces
Meeting the challenge of climate change and working with residents
and business across the High Peak to implement the climate change
action plan

These high level objectives will also provide the framework for the
development and delivery or service and appropriate actions plans.

Page 61

9.9

Underpinning the delivery of these objectives are the new political
administrations' co-operative values, which will be developed to define how
we do things, both as an organisation. These are based around:





9.10

Openness and honesty
Ownership
Fairness and respect
Involvement

Expanding further on these values:
Openness and Honesty
o We will - be open and honest in the way we work and make decisions and
communicate in a clear, timely and straightforward way. We will ensure
that part 2 declarations are used only where necessary to enable
discussion in public to take place whenever possible.
o We will be clear where there are restrictions, requirements or limits on how
and why we make decisions, i.e. for development control and licensing
and their quasi-judicial function.
Ownership
o We will - be accountable for our own actions and empower others with the
skills to help themselves
o We would like everyone - to the best of their abilities, to take action and
responsibility for themselves and their community
Fairness and Respect
o We will - respond to people's needs in a fair and consistent way
o We will and would like everyone to - respect and care for themselves and
others, valuing the different ideas and skills that people bring and treating
each other as equals
Involvement
o We will - work together with our communities, involving people in the
decisions that affect their lives. Been prepared to listen and take on new
ideas within the restrictions in place for some decisions
o We would like everyone - to work with and support others, get involved
and share their views to help us develop the way we do things

10

Influencing Role

10.1

The delivery of public services in the High Peak is undertaken by a variety of
partners including the Council, Derbyshire County Council, Derbyshire Police,
parish and town councils, health service providers and others.

10.2

The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing our local
area. This is the community leadership role. Fulfilling this role effectively will
mean influencing partners in several key areas to ensure that services are

Page 62

shaped and delivered around the needs and aspirations of citizens. The
Council’s influencing role will be focused in the following priority areas:






10.3

Work with Derbyshire County Council and other partners to enable
high speed internet across the borough
Support the development of more cycle routes whilst working with
Derbyshire County Council and residents to ensure harmony
amongst road users
Working with regional partners such as Derbyshire County Council,
Greater Manchester Combined Authority and the Sheffield City
Region to improve public transport links across the borough and
extend the GM rail ticketing boundary
Encouraging local organisations and businesses to reduce their
carbon footprint
Ensure the best use of public assets across the borough by working
via the One Public Estate project

The Council will also continue to seek to influence our partners in the following
long term projects:







Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including The
Crescent and Torr Vale Mill
Pressing for more regular and faster rail links and public transport
links and essential road infrastructure (i.e. A628 / A6 bypasses,
Whaley Bridge 2nd Bridge, Gamesley Station)
Supporting the completion of the off road route for the Trans Pennine
Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington Trails
Maintaining the provision of accessible health of social care and
working with partners to ensure health and well being
Support the police in dealing with anti social behaviour
Work with partners to bring additional funding into the borough

11

Priority Outcomes and Actions

11.1

In implemented the Corporate Plan the Council intends to give the highest
priority to the following outcomes:

Page 63

Aim

Priority Outcomes

Supporting our communities
to create a healthier, safer,
cleaner High Peak






Improved housing repairs service
Improved private sector housing conditions
Increased supply of affordable housing
Increased level of community support

A responsive, smart,
financially resilient and
forward thinking Council






Increased use of local firms through procurement
Provision of more apprenticeships
Increased levels of customer satisfaction
Better engagement with our local communities

Protect and create jobs in
the High Peak by supporting
economic growth,
development & regeneration






Increased economic growth
Higher paid employment
New tourism opportunities
Thriving and flourishing town centres and high
streets





Reduction in carbon emissions
Reduced levels of environmental crime
Appropriate response to the climate emergency
declaration through a deliverable plan

Protect and improve the
environment including
responding to the climate
emergency

11.2

These key priority outcomes will be the highest priority in the development of
performance targets and key actions. A significant proportion of the Council’s
resources will be directed towards them.

11.3

The achievement of the Council’s objectives will be supported by a number of
priority actions to ensure step improvements and maximum impact upon the
priority outcomes. These will be implemented over the life of the Corporate
Plan and progress will be closely monitored and reported as part of the
Council’s performance management framework.

11.4

A summary of the Corporate Plan is attached at Appendix A. The key actions
committed in the Corporate Plan are detailed in Appendix B.

12

Measurement of Performance

12.1

As with previous versions, the new Corporate Plan will need to identify key
performance indicators. These will in effect form the measurement of the
progress the Council is making against each objective and form the basis of
performance reporting to the Executive, the Corporate Select Committee, and
the Alliance Management Team (AMT).

12.2

Targets will need to be established in the Corporate Plan for these indicators
for the medium term. These targets will need to be set at level where it can be

Page 64

demonstrated that Council is making a contribution towards its priority
outcomes.
12.3

Once the Council has approved the core of its new Corporate Plan i.e. Vision,
Aims, Objectives and Priorities, members will then be in a position to
determine a set of local performance indicators and targets.
This exercise has been successfully completed in the past by the Corporate
Select Committee through a working group. It is intended that this is the
approach that is used for the development of the framework that will support
the implementation of the new corporate plan.

12.4

The exercise of developing key performance indicators is a unique opportunity
to ensure that performance is properly focussed around local priorities. It will
be essential to ensure that the performance measures contribute towards
measuring achievements against the Council’s priority outcomes.

13

Process for Approval and Adoption of the Corporate Plan

13.1

In order to ensure its successful implementation, the vision, aims, objectives
and priorities of the Corporate Plan require buy in from all members and
officers.

13.2

In order to allow councillors proper consideration, the following process has
been adopted:





13.3

Members’ priority setting day (16th July 2019)
Consideration by Corporate Select Committee (30th September 2019)
Consideration by the Executive (10th October 2019)
Consideration by full Council (15th October 2019)

In order to ensure full implementation of the plan a number of further actions
are also required. These are as follows:







Update of the Forward Plan and Select Committee work programmes to
reflect the new key projects contained within the Plan (October 2019)
Development of project plans for new key projects (October 2019)
External publicity of the contents of the plan to ensure accountability for
delivery (October 2019)
Update of the Council’s Performance Management framework to ensure
that there is effective monitoring of progress (November 2019)
Development of performance scorecards / dashboards for monitoring
achievement against the established priority outcomes (November 2019)
Update of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan to ensure resources
are directed into achieving the objectives and priority outcomes (December
2019)

Page 65

14

Process for Review

14.1

The Council has established a practice of refreshing its Corporate Plan on a
four-yearly basis i.e. following a local election. This ensures that the plan
reflects the political priorities of the Council and the process allows all
councillors an opportunity to feed in issues at the start of the new
administration.

14.2

The performance framework will need to be reconsidered on an annual basis
in order to establish targets for each individual financial year. This will provide
a regular opportunity for members to keep the overall plan and its direction
under review.

14.3

An annual report to full Council in the Autumn of each year, will also provide
an opportunity for annual review of the Corporate Plan.

Page 66

Page 67

Corporate Plan
2019-2023
Working together to protect and invest in the High Peak with the Council on your side

Aim 1:
Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:
 Effective relationship
with strategic partners
 Fit for purpose housing
that meets the
need of tenants and residents
 Practical support of

Page 68

community safety
arrangements
 Provision of high quality
leisure facilities both in formal
leisure centres and swimming
pools and out in our communities
 Work with our partners and the
community to address health
inequality, food and fuel poverty,
mental health and loneliness
. Effective provision of high quality
public amenities,
clean streets and
environmental health

Supporting our communities to create a healthier,
safer, cleaner High Peak
In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain strong
partnership working with community groups
 Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme
 Develop and implement an ongoing leisure facilities plan focused on improving
the health and wellbeing of residents
 Review the Sports & Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate communities
and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives
 Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed
recommendations
 Review the Community Safety Strategy to ensure that the Council is supportive in
fighting crime and anti social behaviour
 Implement the Homelessness Strategy effectively to ensure that voluntary groups
and social enterprises that work to tackle the issue are supported effectively
 Review the delivery of services to older persons to ensure that they are effective
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for private
renters
Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive
outcomes around…
 Maintaining the provision of accessible health and social care
 Dealing with anti social behaviour
Our key priorities will be...
 Improved housing repairs service


Improved private sector housing conditions



Increased supply of affordable housing



Increased level of community support

Aim 2:

A responsive, smart, financially resilient and
forward-thinking council

Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:
 Ensure our future financial resilience
can be financially sustainable whilst
offering value for money
 Ensure our services are
readily available to all our residents in the
appropriate channels
and provided “right first
time”

Page 69

 Invest in our staff to ensure we have the
internal expertise to deliver our plans by
supporting our high performing and
well motivated
workforce
 More effective use of
council assets to benefit our communities
 Effective procurement with a focus on
local businesses
. Use innovation, technology and
partnership with others to help improve
the efficiency of services, improve

In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of the public
estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in place
 Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that services are accessible to all
 Refresh the council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure there is a more
effective dialogue and engagement with residents
 Conduct a review of democratic processes and scrutiny arrangements to make the
council as open and transparent as possible
 Implement the council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme
 Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of Universal Credit
 Continue to embed good information management practices through the ASSURED
framework
 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating
income
 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services
 Review the council’s Diversity Policies including working with faith and cultural groups
to celebrate the traditions and diversity of our community
 Develop a new OD Strategy to ensure effective workforce development and use of
apprenticeships
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money locally
 Implement the agreed Housing Revenue Account Business Plan

Our key priorities will be…

customer satisfaction and reduce our



impact on the environment

Increased use of local firms through procurement



Provision of more apprenticeships




Increased levels of customer satisfaction
Better engagement with our local communities

Protect and create jobs by supporting economic
growth, development and regeneration

Aim 3:

In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Review the implementation of the Local Plan to ensure that the

Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:

requirements for affordable housing and developer contributions are
being met

 Encouraging business

 Support the development of Glossop Halls

start-ups and enterprises

 Implement the accelerated business growth and employment

 Work to create flourishing town
centres and thriving high streets that
support the local economy
 Promote tourism to maximise local

Page 70

benefit
 High quality development and
building control with an “open for
business” approach
Car parking arrangements that meet the
needs of residents, businesses and visitors
Working to support existing local
businesses, both large and small across
the High Peak as they respond to future
challenges
Supporting the development of
innovative green jobs and businesses
across the High Peak

programme
 Develop a Cultural Strategy to support and celebrate the rich history and
culture of the Borough
 Review the Council’s Growth Strategy to ensure that it is focused on the
effective regeneration of our towns and rural communities
 Establish a developer open space contributions plan

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence
positive outcomes around…
 Working with the private sector on regeneration schemes including:
The Crescent and Torr Vale Mill
 The One Public Estate programme across the Borough
 Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links
and essential road infrastructure
 Completion of the off road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and
access to the Monsall and Tissington Trails
 Bringing additional funding into the borough
 Enabling high speed internet across the Borough
 Extending the Greater Manchester rail offer

Our key priorities will be…
•

Increased economic growth and higher paid employment

•

New tourism opportunities

•

Thriving and flourishing town centres and high streets

Aim 4:
Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:
 Effective recycling and
waste management
 Effective provision of
quality
parks and open
spaces

Page 71

Meeting the challenge of
climate change and
working with residents and
business across the High
Peak to implement the
climate change action plan

Protect and improve the environment including
responding to the climate emergency
In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to AES in order to
achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes
 Develop a Parks Development Plan to support the widest community use
of parks and support community / friends groups
 Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency
 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to
further reduce dog fouling and littering
 Review the Council’s waste and recycling arrangements to increase
recycling and to respond to the emerging new national strategy

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence
positive outcomes around…
 The development of more cycle routes whilst working with the County
Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users
 Encouraging local organisations and businesses to reduce their
carbon footprint

Our key priorities will be…
 Reduced carbon emissions


Reduced levels of environmental crime



A deliverable climate emergency plan

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B
Corporate Plan – Priority Actions (September 2019)
Executive Councillor

Priority Actions

Leader

 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review
of the public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management
arrangements are in place
 Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that Council services
are accessible to all
 Refresh the Council’s Communications and Engagement Strategy in
order to ensure there is a more effective dialogue and engagement with
residents
 Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to
maintain strong partnership working with community groups
 Review the implementation of the Local Plan to ensure that the
requirements for affordable housing and developer contributions are
being met
 Conduct a review of the democratic processes and scrutiny
arrangements to make the Council as open and transparent as possible

Regeneration, Tourism and
Leisure

 Support the development of the Glossop Halls
 Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme
 Implement the accelerated business growth and employment
programme
 Develop a Cultural Strategy to support and celebrate the rich history
and culture of the Borough
 Review the Council’s Growth Strategy to ensure that it is focussed on
the effective regeneration our towns and rural communities
 Develop and implement an ongoing Leisure Facilities plan focussed on
improving the heath and wellbeing of residents
 Review the Sports & Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate the
communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives
 Develop a parks development plan to support the widest community
use of parks and support community / friends groups

Climate Change,
Environment and
Community Safety

 Establish a developer open space contributions plan
 Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed
recommendations
 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Limited in order to achieve improved
performance and value for money outcomes
 Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a
declared climate emergency
 Review the Community Safety Strategy to ensure that the Council is
supportive in fighting crime and anti-social behaviour
 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to
further reduce dog fouling and littering
 Review the Council’s waste & recycling arrangements to increase
recycling and to respond to the emerging new national strategy

Page 73

Executive Councillor

Priority Actions

Corporate Services and
Finance

 Implement the Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme
 Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of
Universal Credit
 Continue to embed good information management practices through
the ASSURED framework
 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of
generating income
 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of
services
 Review the Council’s Diversity Policies including working with faith and
cultural groups to celebrate the traditions and diversity of our
community
 Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our
workforce is developed effectively and that the Council makes effective
use of apprenticeships
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus upon spending
money locally

Housing & Licensing

 Implement the Homelessness Strategy effectively to ensure that
voluntary groups and social enterprises that work to tackle the issue are
supported effectively
 Implement the agreed Housing Revenue Account Business Plan
 Review the delivery of services to older persons to ensure that they are
effective
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for
private renters

Page 74

APPENDIX C
Outcomes from Member Priority Setting Workshop - 16th July 2019
Safe and Healthy Communities
Theme
Housing

Councillors’ Comments

Page 75

















Community Safety








Maintain / increase numbers % of affordable housing
Reduce the number of empty properties
Maintain / increase housing targets in local plan
More energy efficient homes
Finish off housing developments properly and stick to original agreements
Expand the housing stock
Quicker turnover of void properties
Introduce a ‘sell on clause’ for RTBs – tenant should not be able to sell the property onto an external purchaser in
order to make a large profit
Increase the emergency property provision for potentially homeless people especially in Glossop
Re-evaluate the scheme for selling affordable housing - criteria should be local/first time buyers etc. - no buy to lets
- introduce a ‘sell on clause’
Housing developers should allocate a % towards local infrastructure
Utilise public spaces and idle land for small housing developments - Community Land Trust Improve social
housing communal areas: fencing / signposts / lay-by’s
Increase the number of car parks on the estates - utilise grassy areas
Control HMO’s
Work with local housing associations to increase affordable housing
Reduce ASB
Build police station in Chapel
Increase enforcement for alcohol related issues with teenagers – provide outreach services to assist with early
intervention / prevention of alcohol abuse
Work with the fire service to improve fire safety in homes on a regular basis not just when there is a change of
tenancy
Encourage better communication between Police and Councillors
Re-instate regular meetings between Police and Councillors (not PCSOs)

Theme

Councillors’ Comments

Page 76

Community Engagement /
Development











Develop a strategy and plan to work with strategic partners (i.e. engage with police on a regular basis)
More engagement with voluntary centres - ‘better together’
Work with volunteer bureaus and explore what they can do
Look at what sections of society we are supporting and make sure they are the right ones
Better access to information for people that are not computer literate
Improve communication between the Council and the community
Encourage neighbours and community groups to assist the elderly and infirm
Communication should be more positive - better marketing - i.e. the positive effects of the Parkwood Contract
Bring back community awards / community champions

Leisure













Implement and monitor the sports strategy
Encourage local sports groups
Get schools involved in leisure centres
Assist/facilitate setting up and running of small sports clubs i.e. women’s football clubs
Assist sports clubs with improving facilities i.e. changing rooms
Encourage teenagers to participate in sport
Improve the leisure facilities
Look at other authorities that have adapted Victorian facilities for ideas around Glossop swimming pool
Provide sporting facilities in parks
Engage with the people who use / will be using the sporting facilities i.e. teenagers using skate parks
Monitor the Parkwood contract – especially around cancelled classes and the cost of classes i.e. the cost taking a
family swimming
Look at subsidies, concessions and free membership to leisure centres i.e. doctors could recommend free
membership for certain illnesses/obesity
Hold exercise and sports classes in village halls
Need indoor leisure provision for young people (under 12s)





Effective Use of Resources
Theme
Organisational Development

Councillors’ Comments





Page 77
















Procurement




Continuation our current values when it comes to good management of a very difficult financial position
Understand that a change in priorities will mean other things / previous priorities have to change
Pass back ‘thank you’ to the staff to motivate / help with job satisfaction
Do we monitor stress levels / workloads in any way? As numbers have reduced, there is the same amount of work
to be done
More work experiences / apprentices / trainees / acting-up opportunities to help us ‘grow our own’
Training and skills retention essential
Quicker void turnarounds will come from a high performing/motivated workforce
Offer career progression opportunities, to develop our own through the organisation, and retain staff
Consider succession planning - hang onto those who work well together
Give a clear 4 year vision for staff to see
How proud do the staff feel? – What can we do to make people proud?
Is more staff needed in certain areas?
How motivated are staff?
Why was Alliance@10 not shared with a wider audience i.e. Councillors and the public
Review flexible working arrangements particularly for our female staff
Encourage staff to be exposed to councillors more – should report authors deliver at committees?
Better communications between Councillors & Officers to reduce chasing of queries
Assets team are understaffed, and under pressure with big jobs, smaller tasks are not a priority but could help
generate some income? e.g. are our garage blocks under used? Better for parking / housing?
How do we manage the efficiency of our workforce as an asset
Continue the work on the procurement strategy, including supporting / working with smaller local companies /
suppliers – keep it local, boost our own economy locally (ref. Preston Model)
Ensure we review compliancy of contracts, so what we have agreed is delivered, not always the cheapest option
will be the best

Theme
Efficiency / Finance

Councillors’ Comments









Page 78





Access to Services














Work together with other organisations / councils
Fair Funding Review – should we be working with others who want to bring businesses here to reduce the North /
South funding gap
Review our debt recovery strategy – is it value for money to send council tax accounts to bailiffs for benefit
claimants who are already not in a position to pay?
Reduce the amount of paper we send out particularly Council Tax bills by online mechanisms
Offer more flexible payment plans / direct debits and cancel summons costs if paid on time to encourage faster
payment
Make better use of our buildings to maximise the savings from Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy
Deliver housing
Make more of Buxton Town Hall, (ref. Preston Model/Altrincham) – consider other uses such as wedding
venue/covered market venue, attract investment and local visitors as well as tourists
Rationalisation of buildings e.g. sharing premises (e.g. Peak Buildings / Magistrates Court)
Liaise with other landowners to see what their plans are, and work together
Make savings on high overheads by using solar power
Consider turning sites we own into solar farms to generate income e.g. disused quarries
Can councillors champion online / promote our services, hold surgeries to get to residents
Understand the challenges that some of our customers have when it comes to accessing us in person / lack of
broadband connectivity
Understand we will always need to retain a customer facing / telephone service
Customer Services have achieved a lot, but there is still room for improvement
How do we reach those who can’t get online due to age / vulnerability / internet access
Reduce call wait times – could we adopt a ring back system, or a system that tells people where they are in the
queue to reduce complaints?
Get more ‘quick win’ and simple transactions online
Make online forms clearer, so customers don’t have to ring to ask a question about a form
Better signposting on the website
Promote ourselves, our services and what can be done (and what can’t!) online more
Consider a purpose built premises to operate customer services from the town centre, Buxton Town Hall is not ideal
for customers privacy, or access and an inefficient workspace
Improve / increase number of public toilets

Local Economy
Theme

Councillors’ Comments








Address the double tier transport costs – boundary price hikes
Evening bus services linked to the night time leisure / tourist economy
Travel subsidies – work with transport providers (Sheffield and Greater Manchester)
Public transport from rural areas into the towns (takes 2 hrs from Hope Valley into Buxton)
Influence transport providers to cut emissions
Transport impacts from day visitor economy
Better road / rail / bus links

Town Centres










Empty town centre shops give a poor impression of the area
Loss of big-name retailers
Future of the Springs in Buxton
Accessible high streets for visually and mobility impaired visitors
Restructure Buxton – 5 star Crescent, town is lagging behind
More independent / niche traders
Learn from vibrant towns elsewhere
Buxton Future High Street Fund – needs local ownership / engagement / insight / influence – engage local
partnerships / Parkwood / Theatre Trust / Crescent. One shared vision

Business Development














Open door initiative – council could take over empty retail units and use for start-ups
Keep our land assets and use them to glean the commercial benefits rather than selling off
Start-ups for local people
Mixed schemes / civic space
Development mustn’t just be about housing – need starter units for industry
Buxton Town Hall as a live / work space – rent out hot desking sites
Continue with the plans for Glossop Town Hall – public Wi-Fi
Diversification
Are we getting the benefits from the Northern Powerhouse
Maximise business rates contributions
Deliver the regeneration objectives from the Crescent project
Buxton is a University Town – entrepreneurial opportunities locally / work spaces

Page 79

Transport

Theme

Councillors’ Comments

Page 80

Cultural Development




Buxton Opera House improvements – Council support
Cultural Heritage Strategy – Local Festivals: support for / harness economic impacts from

Planning / Development Control






Build green considerations into the planning process
Redevelop brownfield sites
Infrastructure needs to keep up with the growth in housing
Passivhaus – carbon neutral developments

Connectivity



Connectivity – patchy broadband speeds

Tourism








Marketing – The great outdoors offer! Activity / accommodation packages (Go Ape!)
Leisure offer
Reliance on seasonal tourist spend – need all year round jobs for local people
Lack of tourist spend from day visitors
Need to attract more overnight stays – linked to more small B&Bs (Hope / Chapel) and budget-style hotel provision
Better tourist information

Protecting the Environment
Theme

Councillors’ Comments





















Public recycling in all public areas (Glossop)
Increase recycling
Promote food waste recycling and work to improve
Educate residents re recycling (partnering with DCC)
Recycling education – can and can’t recycle and include re-use
Reduce contamination of recycling through education
Investigate and promote business recycling (hotels / farms etc.)
Recycling within council buildings – removal of single use plastics
Introduce recycling education / communications for residents
Promote re-use and work with repair cafes
Increase businesses to offer water bottle refills
Work with supermarkets re single use plastics (also with council water fountain / coffee)
Work with supermarkets to reduce their food waste
Work with producers (i.e. Nestle) re packaging and recycling
Encourage home recycling composting of food waste
Residents blocking pavements with waste and recycling bins
Collect current waste that should be collected that is left out – i.e. red bags for clothing
Tip site at Glossop – increase facilities to match Buxton
Explore larger communal bins in built up areas (e.g. Fairfield Road) and re-educate residents
Dog fouling plastic bags – discourage and look into compostable bags

Public Conveniences









Maintenance of all Public Toilets (Chapel Market Place)
Increase public toilets in all areas
Increase Public Toilets within Buxton Town Centre – work with Springs
More access to public toilets – increase and review times / availability
Encourage businesses re access for public to their toilets
Accessible toilets across High Peak
Promote public toilets for tourists/visitors – (Purple Pound)

Page 81

Waste & Recycling

Theme

Councillors’ Comments

















High Path, Buxton – work with owner
Educate residents re street cleaning
Street cleaning – priority areas to be picked more frequently
Street cleaning – more enforcement and publish
Street cleaning – support more community groups
Street weeding
Cars Parking on pavement – look into and investigate enforcement
Keep pavements clear
Continue and improve and enhance environmental enforcement (dog fouling / litter)
Increase and review litter bins design including recycling of waste
Improve road and gulley cleaning
More street benches
Dog fouling
Enforcement for fly tipping – use CCTV including mobile CCTV for remote areas and investigate new technology
Fly-tipping – work with other neighbouring counties
Public recognition for residents / people that go above and beyond (i.e. Street Cleaning / Street Maintenance –
grass cutting etc.)

Climate Change














Green credentials of the area – Electric charging points
Extend air quality monitoring outside schools (Primary School mainly)
Promote walking to schools
Solar Panels – work with Quarries in area
Look into Water Power to generate electricity
Encourage wind turbines in all areas - Peak Park
Better public transport
Emission monitoring
Renewable energy
Investing in council vehicles that are environmentally friendly
Work with National Park re electric charging points (potential site Torside)
Electric charging points cost incl. with parking fee

Page 82

Street Cleansing

Theme

Councillors’ Comments




















Increase tree planting in all areas
Increase wild flower planting – look into along highways etc.
Cut grass verges less
Community Orchards Small park in Chapel – replace or not. Decision.
Ashwood Park, Buxton - Bridge
Grants funding for Parishes – to help look after Parks/Open Spaces
Promote Parks and Open spaces
Tree planting in parks
Address ASB in parks
Park litter picks
Greater co-ordination of Park Litter picks
Accessible equipment within parks
More benches within parks
Increase Tree planting in all areas (estates / grassed areas)
Implement tree planting replacement programme
Review weed killer process and products used, hazard - no artificial weed killer
Actions plans (maintenance plans) for Parks and Opens spaces to be reviewed
Friends of Parks Groups – open days / work together
Review goose numbers in Pavilion Gardens

Car Parking











Increase / extend car park within Chapel-en-le-Frith (Thornbrook Road – maintenance and extend)
Extend car park within Chapel-en-le-Frith
Electric charging points in council owned car parks
Improve car parks incl. machines / maintenance
Maintenance of all car parks – re-line all
Increase car parking at stations (New Town)
Car park at Pavilion Gardens (bottom deck)
Review current free after 6pm car parking hours – bring earlier
Review charging on car parks

Page 83

Parks & Open Spaces

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
10 October 2019

TITLE:

Data Protection Policy

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Alan Barrow- Executive
Councillor for Corporate Services and
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER:

David Smith – Principal Officer Communities
& Partnerships

WARDS INVOLVED:

All Wards

Appendices Attached – Data Protection Policy
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To update the Council’s Data Protection Policy in light of recent legislative
changes.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Executive notes and approves the Council’s revised Data Protection
Policy.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council last updated its Data Protection Policy in March 2017. Since this
date, there have been a number of legislative changes that require the
Council’s policy to be updated, details of which are included at paragraph 7.3
of the report.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The policy supports the achievement of all of the Council’s Corporate
Priorities.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

None identified. The Council is required to adopt a Data Protection Policy that
reflects current legislation.

Page 85

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The data protection policy would apply to the processing of
community safety-related information.

6.2

Workforce
All staff members will be expected to operate under the policy in a
manner that is compatible with the requirements of the Data
Protection Act 2018.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
Not applicable.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There will be an ongoing requirement for training officers and Elected
Members but these costs will be met from existing budgets.

6.5

Legal
The policy seeks to ensure that the Council is compliant with the Data
Protection Act 2018 and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
(EU 2016/679).

6.6

Sustainability
No specific implications.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
N/A

6.8

Risk Assessment
Non-compliance with data protection principles can lead to poor
decision making, inefficient business processes, inconvenience or
harm to residents and others, reputational damage to the Authority, or
enforcement action by the Information Commissioner’s Office.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details
David Smith

Page 86

Principal Officer Communities &
Partnerships
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk

7.

Detail

7.1

The Council last updated its Data Protection Policy in March 2017. Since then,
there have been some key changes to the UK’s data protection legislation,
including:




The Data Protection Act 2018 receiving Royal Assent on 23 May 2018;
Implementation of the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 on 25
May 2018; and
Removal of the previous requirement for elected members to notify the
ICO and pay a charge on 1 April 2019.

7.2

The Council’s Data Protection Policy has been updated to reflect these
changes and is attached as an appendix to the report.

7.3

The Council has also introduced or updated a number of processes and
systems to support the delivery of the new policy. These include:









Introducing a new system for responding to requests for access to
personal data;
Identification of a Data Protection Officer;
Updating the Council’s Privacy Notices;
Requiring each service to develop and maintain an information asset
register;
Incorporating privacy impact assessments within the Council’s project
management system;
Providing training for Elected Members and Officers;
Providing Service Managers with a checklist for complying with data
protection legislation; and
Reviewing contractors and ensuring that appropriate measures are in
place to ensure that any data processed on behalf of the Council is
done so appropriately.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Alliance Data Protection Policy
1.

Introduction

1.1 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
(“The Councils”) collect and use information about people to efficiently and
effectively provide quality services. The Councils may also be required by
law to collect and use certain information.
1.2

This may be information about:





members of the public;
businesses;
customers; and
current, past and prospective employees and Councillors.

1.3 It is important that the collection and use of personal data is carried out
lawfully, fairly and in a transparent manner. Failure to do so can lead to a
range of problems including poor decision making, inefficient business
processes, inconvenience or harm to residents and others, reputational
damage to the authority, or enforcement action by the Information
Commissioner’s Office. Enforcement action can include fines of up to 10
million Euros1 for serious breaches of data protection legislation and
prosecution for deliberate breaches.
1.4 The key sources of data protection legislation are:



The Data Protection Act 2018; and
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) (EU 2016/679).

1.5 The Councils are fully committed to compliance with data protection
requirements, which controls the way information is handled and gives
legal rights to people who have information stored about them.
1.6 Explanations of key terms are provided at Appendix A.

1

Approximately £8,800,000

1

Page 89

2.

General Principles

2.1 The GDPR specifies six key principles to be followed when processing
personal data2.
a

Principles
lawfulness, fairness and
transparency


processed lawfully, fairly and in
a transparent manner in
relation to the data subject

Actions

Information should only be held where it is
justified to do so and processing may be
carried out where one of the following
conditions has been met:
a) Consent: The individual has given clear
consent for you to process their personal data
for a specific purpose.
b) Contract: The processing is necessary for a
contract you have with the individual, or
because they have asked you to take specific
steps before entering into a contract.
c) Legal obligation: The processing is
necessary for you to comply with the law (not
including contractual obligations).
d) Vital interests: The processing is necessary
to protect someone’s life.
e) Public task: The processing is necessary
for you to perform a task in the public interest
or for your official functions, and the task or
function has a clear basis in law.
f) Legitimate interests: The processing is
necessary for your legitimate interests or the
legitimate interests of a third party unless
there is a good reason to protect the
individual’s personal data which overrides
those legitimate interests.

b

purpose limitation


2

collected for specified, explicit
and legitimate purposes and
not further processed in a
manner that is incompatible
with those purposes.



The Councils will generally rely on ‘legal
obligation’ (c) and ‘public task’ (e) when
processing data. Councillors will normally rely
on ‘public task’ when carrying out casework
on behalf of their constituents.



Be transparent about how you intend to use
the data, and give individuals appropriate
privacy notices when collecting their personal
data.



Handle people’s personal data only in ways
they would reasonably expect.



Each Council is one data controller. As such,
personal data held by the Council can be used
within the Council, as set out in the Councils’
Privacy Notice, to carry out the functions of the
Council.



Access to personal data is restricted to those
within the Council that need access to it for an

Set out at Article 5.

2

Page 90

identified lawful purpose (a to f above).

c

data minimisation


d

accuracy


e

kept in a form which permits
identification of data subjects
for no longer than is necessary
for the purposes for which the
personal data are processed

integrity and confidentiality


If you wish to use or disclose personal data for
any purpose that is additional to or different
from the originally specified purpose, make
sure that the new use or disclosure is fair.



When receiving requests for personal data,
clarify the identity of the requesting party, the
reason why the information is required and if
there is authority to give the personal data
(section 6).



Where consent is used as the legal basis for
processing personal data, you must ensure
that consent is unambiguous, freely given and
an affirmative action. You must maintain an
audit trail to demonstrate that consent was
gained and have systems that allow consent to
be revoked. Where special category data are
processed, the consent gained will be explicit
consent.



Hold the minimum personal data required to
perform the function that you need it for.



Do not hold more information than you need.



Take reasonable steps to ensure that
information is accurate and up-to-date.



Refer to the Councils’ Document Retention
Policy;



Securely delete information that is no longer
required.



Follow the Councils’ ICT Use and Information
Security Policy



Identify potential risks and put appropriate
measures in place.

accurate and, where
necessary, kept up to date;
every reasonable step must be
taken to ensure that personal
data that are inaccurate,
having regard to the purposes
for which they are processed,
are erased or rectified without
delay

storage limitation


f

adequate, relevant and limited
to what is necessary in relation
to the purposes for which they
are processed



processed in a manner that
ensures appropriate security of
the personal data, including

3

Page 91

protection against unauthorised
or unlawful processing and
against accidental loss,
destruction or damage, using
appropriate technical or
organisational measures.



Report breaches of security.

2.2 The Councils will ensure that data is processed in accordance with the
rights of the data subject set out in the GDPR including the:






3.

Right of access.
Right to rectification.
Right to erasure.
Right to restriction of processing.
Right to data portability.
Right to object.

Responsibilities for processing personal data

3.1 All staff members, Councillors and the Councils’ contractors must take
reasonable steps to make sure that personal data is processed in
accordance with the data protection principles. To support this, the
Councils will:










Identify a member of the Senior Management Team to act as Senior
Information Risk Officer (SIRO) with overall responsibility for
overseeing the Councils’ response to information risk;
Identify a Data Protection Officer to develop the Councils’ response
to information risk and act as a source of expertise within the
Council;
Develop a Data Protection Policy, ensure awareness of the policy,
and monitor its implementation;
Hold quarterly Information Risk Group meetings, attended by the
owners of the Councils’ information assets (eg CCTV, Council Tax,
Housing, Revenues and Benefits systems, etc) to identify possible
risks and take steps to mitigate against such risks;
Provide induction training and regular refresher training for all staff
with more in-depth training for key owners of the Councils’
information assets;
Require Council officers to consider the data protection implications,
and the potential need to complete a privacy impact assessment
(see below), within each committee report;
Ensure that appropriate physical and technological security
measures are put in place;
Establish a system for responding to Subject Access Requests
(Section 8) and monitor compliance with the system;

4

Page 92




Register the way in which each Council processes personal
information with the Information Commissioner3; and
Carry out regular checks of services’ compliance with this policy.

Staff Members
3.2 Individual officers will be expected to pay regard to the data protection
principles and accompanying steps outlined in Section 2 and must follow
the Councils’ ICT Use and Information Security Policy. They must also
take steps to ensure that personal data is kept secure at all times against
unauthorised or unlawful loss or disclosure and in particular ensure that:












Paper files and other records or documents containing
personal/sensitive data are kept in a secure environment;
Personal data are collected for a legitimate purpose (or purposes)
and are accurate, up to date and deleted in accordance with the
Councils’ data retention policy when no longer needed;
A record is maintained of information held by each service to ensure
fair and lawful processing;
All names and addresses (postal or e-mail) are checked to make
sure that they are correct and up to date before any personal
information is sent to others;
The secure (pin controlled) printing facility is used, where possible,
and personal information is not allowed to sit uncollected on printers;
The Councils’ clean desk policy is complied with and personal
information is not left unattended on desks;
Personal information collected by the Councils is not transferred to,
or stored upon, equipment owned by staff members (computers,
laptops, tablets, smart phones, etc);
Personal information is only transported between locations where
absolutely necessary and that, when doing so, appropriate levels of
security are applied (eg not leaving folders containing personal
information unattended in cars or bags, ensuring that memory sticks
are encrypted/password protected, etc);
Any losses of data are reported promptly to the Data Protection
Officer; and
Requests for personal information are responded to in line with the
process established in Section 4.

Service Managers
3.3 In addition, Service Managers must:



3

Implement this policy within their Service area;
Ensure compliance with it by staff members, including raising
awareness of data protection responsibilities;

In accordance with the Data Protection (Charges and Information) Regulations 2018

5

Page 93









Ensure that the Service’s information asset register is accurate and
up-to-date;
Understand the information risks related to the Service’s processing
of data and take steps to manage any risks effectively;
Ensure that all data breaches are reported to the Data Protection
Officer without undue delay (Section 4);
Ensure that appropriate privacy notices are provided to customers;
Check the accuracy, completeness and appropriateness of any
information to be provided by the Service in response to a request for
information (Section 8) before it is sent to the Data Protection Officer;
and
Ensure all contractors use by the Service have suitable processes in
place to comply with data protection legislation and that they know
how and when to report any breaches.

Councillors
3.4 Councillors may perform three different roles:
 As a member of the
council
 Carrying out
casework on behalf
of their constituents

 Representing a
political party
(particularly at
election time).

eg when attending
Council committees or
performing an
Executive role
eg when recording and
passing on complaints
received from
constituents

eg campaigning during
an election period

This is covered by the
Councils’ ICO
registrations and this
policy
This is not covered by
the Councils’ ICO
registrations.
Councillors do not
need pay a charge to
register with the ICO
for processing data4.
This is not covered by
the Councils’ ICO
registrations or this
policy.
Any necessary
registrations, etc are
normally provided by
individual political
parties.

3.5 When Councillors consider using personal information then they should:


decide whether their use of the information would be fair and lawful
as required by the first data protection principle;

From 1 April 2019, the Data Protection (Charges and Information) (Amendment) Regulations
2019 exempted the processing of personal data by elected representatives and prospective
representatives from the requirement to notify the ICO and pay a charge.
4

6

Page 94




ensure that personal information held by the local authority is not
used for political purposes unless both the local authority and
individuals concerned agree; and
when campaigning for election, candidates can normally use
personal information (such as mailing lists) held by their parties but
should not use information they hold in their role as local councillors
without the consent of the individual.

3.6 If an individual resident requests a councillor to take action on their behalf
then the councillor’s actions will normally be lawful on the basis that
processing is necessary for the performance of a task carried out in the
public interest or in the exercise of official authority vested in the controller
(public task). This includes activity that supports or promotes democratic
engagement.5 Councillors should, however, ensure that they are open and
transparent about their use of data. This can be achieved by using an
appropriate privacy notice.
3.7 Councillors are able to process special categories of personal data (eg to
pass the details of a complaint to officers of the Council for them to
investigate and respond appropriately) without explicit consent6.
3.8 The Data Protection (Processing of Sensitive Personal Data) (Elected
Representatives) Order 2002 provides a basis for:


Processing of sensitive personal data by elected members in
connection with their functions as an elected representative,
including the disclosure of such information where necessary; and



Disclosure of sensitive personal data by organisations responding to
Members acting on behalf of individual constituents.

3.9 The Order does not place an obligation on organisations to disclose
sensitive personal data to elected members who raise matters on behalf of
constituents but provides a legal basis for doing so.
3.10 If there is any doubt about the resident’s wishes then it would be
appropriate to obtain explicit consent from the resident for sharing and
disclosing the information.
3.11 Candidates for election should be aware that political campaigning falls
within the definition of direct marketing.
3.12 Further guidance can be found on the Information Commissioner’s
website:
https://ico.org.uk/media/for-organisations/documents/1432067/advice-forelected-and-prospective-councillors.pdf
5

Section 8 (e), Data Protection 2018

6

Article 9(2) of the GDPR; Section 8, Data Protection Act 2018;

7

Page 95

Contractors
3.13 Council contract managers should ensure that any contractors,
consultants, partners or other servants or agents of the Council, together
with their staff who have access to personal data held or processed for or
on behalf of the Council, are aware of this policy and are fully trained in
and are aware of their duties and responsibilities under data protection
legislation. This also applies to the suppliers of ICT systems and services
which are designed to store, or process, personal data collected by the
local authority. Where necessary contracts should:







Ensure that any breach of any provision of legislation and/or this
policy will be deemed as being a breach of any contract between the
Council and that individual, company, partner or firm;
Require suppliers to demonstrate that they meet the technical
requirements prescribed by the Government’s Cyber Essentials
Scheme. The requirements can be found at:
https://www.cyberstreetwise.com/cyberessentials/files/requirements.
pdf
Allow data protection audits by the Council of data held on its behalf
(if requested);
Report any breaches to the appropriate Council contract manager
and Data Protection Officer without undue delay; and
Indemnify as appropriate the Council against any prosecutions,
claims, proceedings, actions or payments of compensation or
damages.

3.14 All contractors who process personal information supplied by the Council
will be required, where necessary to confirm prior to entering into a
contract that they will abide by the requirements of data protection
legislation and this policy.
4.

Breaches

4.1 A personal data breach is defined as a breach of security leading to the
accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure
of, or access to, personal data transmitted, stored, or otherwise processed
7.
4.2 All suspected breaches should be reported without undue delay to the
Councils’ Data Protection Officer using the Data Incident Reporting Form
that can be accessed on the intranet at https://hpbc.allianceonline.org/assured.
4.3 The Council has 72 hours to report a breach to the Information
Commissioner unless the personal data breach is unlikely to result in a
risk to the rights and freedoms of an individual.

7

Defined by Article 4, General Data Protection Regulation 2016.

8

Page 96

4.4 The Data Protection Officer will record the breach and make a decision as
to whether the breach should be reported. Where required, the DPO will
work with the service area to examine whether steps could be taken to
prevent re-occurrence of the breach in the future. The referral should
describe:







incident details;
date and time of incident;
details of person affected;
whether the data subjects are aware of the breach
the likely consequence of the breach; and
measures taken to address/mitigate the breach.

4.5 Details of the number and types of breaches will be shared with the
Councils’ Information Governance Group. This group will, amongst other
things, look for any patterns or repeat occurrences and consider what
could be done corporately to mitigate against any future personal data
breaches.
4.6 If the data breach is likely to result in a risk to the rights and freedoms of
the data subject, then the authority is required to report the breach to the
Information Commissioner, where feasible, within 72 hours of becoming
aware of it. The Data Protection Officer will be responsible for making
such referrals in consultation with the SIRO (or, in his absence, another
Executive Director).
5.

Communicating Privacy Information to Individuals

5.1 The Councils (and Councillors when carrying out casework) must provide
certain information when personal data are collected from the data subject
8. This links to the requirement for transparency in the first data protection
principle. The data subject should be provided with the following
information at the time when the personal data are obtained:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

the identity and the contact details of the controller and, where
applicable, of the controller's representative;
the contact details of the data protection officer, where applicable;
the purposes of the processing for which the personal data are
intended as well as the legal basis for the processing;
details of the legitimate interests pursued by the controller or by a
third party where this is relied upon to lawfully process the data;
the recipients or categories of recipients of the personal data, if any;
where applicable, the fact that the controller intends to transfer
personal data to a third country or international organisation and
related information.

5.2 A similar set of information must be provided to the data subject when the
information has not been received from the data subject.
8

Article 13, GDPR

9

Page 97

5.3 The Council must actively communicate privacy information by taking
positive action to provide such information. For example, by providing
interactive information in an online form explaining why we need particular
details. This could also be delivered via text-based notifications that
appear briefly when an individual hovers over a particular field. This is
different from having privacy information available for members of the
public if they look for it themselves, for example by clicking on a web link
or searching for more information on a website.
5.4 The need to actively communicate privacy information is strongest where:





we are collecting sensitive information;
the intended use of the information is likely to be unexpected or
objectionable;
providing personal information, or failing to do so, will have a
significant effect on the individual; or
the information will be shared with another organisation in a way that
individuals would not expect.

5.5 The ICO suggests that rather than having a single, catch-all privacy
notice, separate notices aimed at different groups are likely to make
information clearer and easier to understand.
5.6 The Information Commissioner’s Office has published guidance on privacy
notices, transparency and control, which can be accessed at:
https://ico.org.uk/about-the-ico/privacy-notices-transparency-and-control.
6.

Data Sharing

6.1 Data sharing means the disclosure of data from one or more organisations
to a third party organisation or organisations, or the sharing of data
between different parts of an organisation. It is recognised that data
sharing across each Council and with other organisations can play a
crucial role in providing better, more efficient services for our residents,
businesses and others. However, it is important that we do this in the right
way, and for the right reasons, and respect individual’s rights under the
Data Protection Act.
6.2 Two data sharing checklists, based upon those published by the ICO, are
provided at Appendix B. One should be used for the ‘systematic’ sharing
of data, which generally involves the routine sharing of data sets for an
agreed purpose, and the other is for ad hoc (or one-off) data sharing.
Anyone considering sharing of data with others should consider the
relevant checklist before disclosing any personal data.
6.3 The Councils may have express obligations, or expressed or implied
powers within legislation to share personal information. In other cases,
data sharing may not involve personal data, for example where only
statistics that cannot identify anyone are being shared. It is still important
for the authority to seek to be transparent about the sharing of personal
10

Page 98

information in such circumstances, wherever appropriate, as outlined in
the previous section.
6.4 The general rule is that individuals should, at least, be aware that personal
data about them has been, or is going to be shared. This applies even if
the individual’s consent is not needed. There are certain limited
circumstances under which personal data, even sensitive data, can be
shared without the individual knowing about it. This includes:




the prevention or detection of crime
the apprehension or prosecution of offenders; or
the assessment or collection of tax or duty.

6.5 An organisation processing personal data for one of these purposes is
exempt from the fairness requirements of the Data Protection Act, but
only to the extent that applying these provisions would be likely to
prejudice the crime and taxation purposes.
6.6 The authority needs to have an auditable record of any information that
has been requested by or from others, the decisions whether or not to
disclose the requested information and the reasons for that decision.
6.7 Appendix C provides a standard data request form. This should be used
by external agencies or organisations when requesting third party
information from the Council. It can also be used for requesting
information from other organisations where they do not have their own
specific form to complete.
6.8 Appendix D provides a template to be used to record decisions about
whether to share information following a request from another
organisation. It is important that you use this to keep a record of your
decision-making process.
6.10 The Information Commissioner has produced a code of practice on data
sharing, which can be accessed at: https://ico.org.uk/fororganisations/guide-to-data-protection/data-sharing/
7.

Privacy Impact Assessments

7.1 The Council will consider the potential impact of any project that involves
the use of personal data, or any other activity that could have an impact
on the privacy of individuals, within its decision making processes. The
Council will carry out a written Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) where
the potential impact on privacy is high, such as where:



A new IT system for storing and accessing personal data is being
considered;
A data sharing initiative is being developed where two or more
organisations seek to pool or link sets of personal data;
11

Page 99








A project seeks to identify people in a particular group or
demographic and initiate a course of action;
Existing data may be used for a new and unexpected or more
intrusive purpose;
A new surveillance system (especially one which monitors members
of the public) or the application of new technology to an existing
system (for example adding automatic number plate recognition
capabilities to existing CCTV) is being considered;
A new database that consolidates information held by separate parts
of an organisation is being developed;
Legislation, policy or strategies is being introduced which will impact
on privacy through the collection of use of information, or through
surveillance or other monitoring.

7.2 The PIA will look at information flows, identify the privacy and related
risks, and identify and evaluate the privacy solutions. The PIA should be
signed-off by the Councils’ Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) and any
outcomes built into the project plan.
8

Dealing with access requests

8.1 A data subject has the right to obtain confirmation from the Councils
whether personal data concerning him or her are being processed, and,
where that is the case, access to the personal data and the following
information:
(a)

the purposes of the processing;

(b)

the categories of personal data concerned;

(c)

the recipients or categories of recipient to whom the personal data
have been or will be disclosed, in particular recipients in third
countries or international organisations;

(d)

where possible, the envisaged period for which the personal data will
be stored, or, if not possible, the criteria used to determine that
period;

(e)

the existence of the right to request from the controller rectification or
erasure of personal data or restriction of processing of personal data
concerning the data subject or to object to such processing;

(f)

the right to lodge a complaint with a supervisory authority;

(g)

where the personal data are not collected from the data subject, any
available information as to their source; and

(h)

the existence of automated decision-making, including profiling, and,
at least in those cases, meaningful information about the logic
involved, as well as the significance and the envisaged
consequences of such processing for the data subject.
12

Page 100

8.2 The Councils have created a webform for use by people wishing to submit
a data access request https://sar.infreemation.co.uk/highpeak/. Any
requests that are received in writing should be sent to
dpo@highpeak.gov.uk.
8.3 The Councils will require any individual who is making a request for
information, other than those already known to the Councils, to provide
proof of identity. This will normally involve providing:



a government document which verifies the client’s full name and a
supporting document (eg a utility/Council Tax bill, bank statement,
insurance certificate) which verifies their name and either their
address or their date of birth.

8.4 The Councils must respond to a subject access request promptly and in
any event within one calendar month of receiving it9. We may need to
ask for more information to help it find the data or identify the person main
the request. In such cases, the response period begins once we have all
the necessary information to dealing with the request.
8.5 We can restrict access to someone’s personal data, where it is a
necessary and proportionate measure to:
(a) avoid obstructing an official or legal inquiry, investigation or
procedure;
(b) avoid prejudicing the prevention, detection, investigation or
prosecution of criminal offences or the execution of criminal
penalties;
(c) protect public security;
(d) protect national security;
(e) protect the rights and freedoms of others.
Third Party Requests
8.6 In addition to subject access requests, the Councils also receive requests
for data relating to individuals from third parties. The Councils can only
share such information if there is a lawful reason for doing so. Such
requests can be broadly grouped into two different types:
a) Subject Access Requests submitted on behalf of somebody else.
8.7 Information can only be released if the person requesting the information
can provide proof that they are legally authorised to act on the data
subject’s behalf. This could be in the form of a letter of authority, lasting
power of attorney, evidence of parental responsibility, etc. The Councils
will not release information in such circumstances if it is not satisfied that
the person requesting the information has provided sufficient proof of
authorisation. The Councils may contact the data subject to verify that
they are happy for the requested data to be released.
9

S54 Data Protection Act 2018

13

Page 101

b) Requests for personal data relating to another individual.
8.8 The Council can only release personal data relating to another individual if
there is a lawful justification for doing so. Part 4 and Schedule 7 of the Act
contain several specific exemptions to the disclosure/non-disclosure rules.
As noted above, this includes information relating to crime and taxation,
some regulatory activity and that linked to legal proceedings.
8.9 The Council will only release personal information relating to a third party
if it receives a request in writing that clearly outlines why the person
requesting the information believes that the data is exempt from the nondisclosure provisions. The Council needs to satisfy itself that such
requests are legitimate and that the stated non-disclosure exemptions
apply in that specific instance.
8.10 A clear record of the nature of the request and reasons for decision about
release of information relating to their service need to be maintained by
the relevant Service Manager. Information should only be released with
the agreement of the Service Manager and the Data Protection Officer
should be consulted if there is any uncertainty as to whether information
should or should not be released.
9.

Information security procedures

9.1 Data Protection Principle 7 requires the Councils to have appropriate
technical and organisational measures to guard against unauthorised or
unlawful processing of personal data and against accidental loss or
destruction of, or damage to, personal data.
9.2 All staff members and Councillors are expected to follow the ICT Use and
Security Policy. Key actions include:










Choosing a password of suitable complexity that cannot easily be
guessed;
Not disclosing passwords to any other person;
Not leaving desktop PC/terminal equipment unattended whilst still
logged onto the system;
Only running software that you are authorised to use and not
installing any software onto a PC;
Following the Internet and E-mail Usage policy;
Suitably marking e-mails containing Protected or Restricted data in
the subject line;
Reporting information security incidents and/or security breaches
immediately to the Information Security Officer and/or IT Service.
This includes theft or loss of equipment and/or data;
Not allowing individuals that you don’t know to pass unchallenged
through a secure door;
Supervising visitors; and

14

Page 102



Challenging people who are not wearing their identification or a
visitor’s badge.

10. Contact details
Data Protection Officer
High Peak Borough Council
Buxton Town Hall
Market Place
Buxton
Derbyshire
SK17 6EL
dpo@highpeak.gov.uk

Data Protection Officer
Staffordshire Moorlands District
Council
Moorlands House
Leek
Staffordshire
ST13 6HQ
dpo@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

15

Page 103

Appendix A

Definitions

‘Personal data’ means any information relating to an identified or identifiable
natural person (‘data subject’); an identifiable natural person is one who can be
identified, directly or indirectly, in particular by reference to an identifier such as
a name, an identification number, location data, an online identifier or to one or
more factors specific to the physical, physiological, genetic, mental, economic,
cultural or social identity of that natural person.
‘Special categories of personal data’ means data revealing racial or ethnic
origin, political opinions, religious or philosophical beliefs, or trade union
membership; genetic data; biometric data; health data; or data concerning a
natural person's sex life or sexual orientation.
‘Processing’ means any operation or set of operations which is performed on
personal data or on sets of personal data, whether or not by automated means,
such as collection, recording, organisation, structuring, storage, adaptation or
alteration, retrieval, consultation, use, disclosure by transmission, dissemination
or otherwise making available, alignment or combination, restriction, erasure or
destruction.
‘Restriction of processing’ means the marking of stored personal data with
the aim of limiting their processing in the future.
‘Profiling’ means any form of automated processing of personal data consisting
of the use of personal data to evaluate certain personal aspects relating to a
natural person, in particular to analyse or predict aspects concerning that
natural person's performance at work, economic situation, health, personal
preferences, interests, reliability, behaviour, location or movements.
‘Pseudonymisation’ means the processing of personal data in such a manner
that the personal data can no longer be attributed to a specific data subject
without the use of additional information, provided that such additional
information is kept separately and is subject to technical and organisational
measures to ensure that the personal data are not attributed to an identified or
identifiable natural person.
‘Filing system’ means any structured set of personal data which are accessible
according to specific criteria, whether centralised, decentralised or dispersed on
a functional or geographical basis.
‘Controller’ means the natural or legal person, public authority, agency or other
body which, alone or jointly with others, determines the purposes and means of
the processing of personal data; where the purposes and means of such
processing are determined by Union or Member State law, the controller or the
specific criteria for its nomination may be provided for by Union or Member
State law.
‘Processor’ means a natural or legal person, public authority, agency or other
body which processes personal data on behalf of the controller.
16

Page 104

‘Recipient’ means a natural or legal person, public authority, agency or another
body, to which the personal data are disclosed, whether a third party or not.
However, public authorities which may receive personal data in the framework
of a particular inquiry in accordance with Union or Member State law shall not
be regarded as recipients; the processing of those data by those public
authorities shall be in compliance with the applicable data protection rules
according to the purposes of the processing.
‘Third party’ means a natural or legal person, public authority, agency or body
other than the data subject, controller, processor and persons who, under the
direct authority of the controller or processor, are authorised to process
personal data.
‘Consent’ of the data subject means any freely given, specific, informed and
unambiguous indication of the data subject's wishes by which he or she, by a
statement or by a clear affirmative action, signifies agreement to the processing
of personal data relating to him or her.
‘Personal data breach’ means a breach of security leading to the accidental or
unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of, or access to,
personal data transmitted, stored or otherwise processed.

17

Page 105

Appendix B

Data sharing checklist

Systematic Data Sharing
You want to enter into an agreement to share personal data on an ongoing
basis
Is the sharing justified?
Key points to consider:
 What is the sharing meant to achieve?
 Have you assessed the potential benefits and risks to individuals and/or
society of sharing or not sharing?
 Is the sharing proportionate to the issue you are addressing?
 Could the objective be achieved without sharing personal data?
Do you have the power to share?
Key points to consider:
 Any relevant functions or powers of the organisation.
 The nature of the information you have been asked to share (for example
was it given in confidence?).
 Any legal obligation to share information (for example a statutory
requirement or a court order).
If you decide to share
It is good practice to have a data sharing agreement in place.
As well as considering the key points above, your data sharing agreement
should cover the following issues:
 What information needs to be shared.
 The organisations that will be involved.
 What you need to tell people about the data sharing and how you will
communicate that information.
 Measures to ensure adequate security is in place to protect the data.
 What arrangements need to be in place to provide individuals with
access to their personal data if they request it.
 Agreed common retention periods for the data.
 Processes to ensure secure deletion takes place.

18

Page 106

Data Sharing Checklist – One-off Requests
You are asked to share personal data relating to an individual in ‘one off’
circumstances
Is the sharing justified?
Key points to consider:
 Do you think you should share the information?
 Have you assessed the potential benefits and risks to individuals and/or
society of sharing or not sharing?
 Do you have concerns that an individual is at risk of serious harm?
 Do you need to consider an exemption in the DPA to share?
Do you have the power to share?
Key points to consider:
 Any relevant functions or powers of the organisation.
 The nature of the information you have been asked to share (for example
was it given in confidence?).
 Any legal obligation to share information (for example a statutory
requirement or a court order).
If you decide to share
Key points to consider:
 What information do you need to share?
– Only share what is necessary.
– Distinguish fact from opinion.
 How should the information be shared?
– Information must be shared securely.
– Ensure you are giving information to the right person.
 Consider whether it is appropriate/safe to inform the individual that you
have shared their information.
Record your decision
Record your data sharing decision and your reasoning – whether or not you
shared the information.
If you share information you should record:
 What information was shared and for what purpose.
 Who it was shared with.
 When it was shared.
 Your justification for sharing.
 Whether the information was shared with or without consent.

19

Page 107

Appendix C

Data Sharing Forms

Request for disclosure of personal information
(1)

Give the name of the organisation from which you are requesting
information.

Organisation
requiring information

WHOSE INFORMATION ARE YOU REQUESTING?
(2)

Give details of the person whose information you are requesting

Use the box below to give sufficient information for the Data Controller to identify an individual
from their records. You should include the name and address of the individual and any other
information you feel is relevant.
This must not be used for ‘trawling’ information and such requests will be refused

Name

Address
Other relevant
information

20

Page 108

WHAT INFORMATION ARE YOU REQUESTING?
(3)

Provide details of the information that you would like to receive

Use the box below to state what information you require to support your enquiry. You should not
ask for ‘all information known about individual’ or similar. You must ask for specific information.
Give enough information so the Data Controller can make a decision whether to disclose in
accordance with your declaration at Para 4.

WHY DO YOU NEED THE INFORMATION?
(4)

Tick on or more boxes below to confirm the purpose of requesting the
information:
the prevention or detection of crime
the apprehension or prosecution of offenders
the assessment or collection of a tax or duty or an imposition of a similar nature
the maintenance of effective immigration control
the investigation or detection of activities that would undermine the
maintenance of effective immigration control; or
the information is required to be disclosed by law etc or in connection with legal
proceedings

21

Page 109

Use the box below to provide details of the investigation/prosecution or assessment or
collection, etc. explanation as to why the information is required for the purpose identified at (4)
above.

Please provide the case number, file
number, case name or other reference that
identifies the investigation
(5)

How will failure to disclose the information prejudice the purpose identified at (4)
above?

(6)

Detail all other means of obtaining the information which you have used and
are now exhausted and proved unsuccessful:

22

Page 110

Declaration:
I certify that:








Information is needed for the purpose(s) indicated in section 4.
Information requested will only be used for the stated purpose(s).
I am authorised to request this information on behalf of my agency or
organisation.
I will ensure that any data provided is processed according to data protection
legislation. This includes but is not limited to ensuring that the information is
securely stored and deleted when no longer required.
Non-disclosure would prejudice the case.
The information given on this form is correct to the best of my knowledge and
belief
I am aware of the provisions of Section 170 of the Data Protection Act 2018
regarding the unlawful obtaining of personal data, and that it is a criminal
offence to obtain data without express legal gateway or permission of the data
subject.

Name of Requestor
Position/Job Title
Address

Contact Number:
E-mail
Signed
Date
This application must be authorised by an officer senior to the requesting
officer. THIS REQUEST SHALL BE TREATED IN CONFIDENCE.
Verification of the Requestor may be required upon request.
Please send the completed form to dpo@highpeak.gov.uk.
Please note: There is no statutory time limit within which local authorities are
obliged to respond to requests made.
ELECTRONIC INPUT AND SUBMISSION
The email history will constitute an audit trail of confirmation and authorisation
in the same way as wet signatures.

23

Page 111

Appendix D

Data Sharing Decision Form

Record of Decision to Share/Not Share Information
Who requested the
information?
(Name of individual and
organisation)
What information was
requested
What was the
information needed for
What information was
shared?
What was your
justification for
sharing/not sharing?
Was the information
shared with or without
consent?
Name: ____________________________________________________________
Job title: __________________________________________________________
Service: __________________________________________________________

24

Page 112

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 113

Agenda Item 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 123

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 141

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 169

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 177

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

